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I T ’ S  O U R

50th
Anniversary

This is a proud milestone which we commemorate 

in a spirit of sharing. Among many commemorative 

activities, we pay homage to our illustrious founder 

Mr. J.P.I. Piyadasa in a programme of religious 

activity. We also felicitate all past and present 

employees who count over 15 years of service 

with us, with a token of appreciation. Looking 

beyond things internal, we have donated medical 

and other equipment to the Kandy General 

Hospital, including a complete 950G Electro Surgery 

System and a Force Fx-8C Electro Surgery Unit.

It’s a special moment in time for the Company…

and we celebrate it in fitting manner! 
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Over 50 years of dedicated operations,

Associated Motor Finance Company PLC has painstakingly 

grown a ‘firmly rooted tree of enterprise’ that has itself 

grown and leant firmly rooted foundation to the lives and 

enterprise of thousands of Sri Lankans from across the land. 

Just as roots are fundamental to the tree, so is the degree 

of trust we share – between Company and Customer – towards 

each other’s advancement. Trust underpins our enterprise as 

well as theirs – we treasure this invaluable aspect and commit to 

‘growing’ even firmer roots of trust which will in turn support the 

aspirations of thousands more, in the coming years. 

As ‘Trustees of Trust’, we are committed to the advancement 

and well-being of our customers and indeed all our stakeholders, 

in the years to come.

w e  a r e  t h e

TRUSTEES
OF YOUR
TRUST



Vision

To be renowned among all our stakeholders as a pre-

eminent financial institution and maximise and sustain 

a rate of return well above the industry level on all 

investments made by our stakeholders

Mission

To be the premier provider of superior financial solutions 

and innovations in leasing solutions to all our customer 

segments, through committed and quality services, and 

provide assistance to allow them the ability to realise their 

financial needs. 

Our Core Values

Customers

Our passion is to serve our niche markets to the best of our 

ability providing them with trusted and steadfast services 

that will allow them to fulfil their financial goals. 

Deposit Holders 

We are committed to provide our depositors the highest 

return for their investments, within the regulator’s guide 

lines, whilst ensuring the security of their investments.

Shareholders 

We are committed to manage all aspects of our business 

affairs prudently to ensure the highest, sustainable returns 

on investments and thereby building shareholders’ values 

at a rate above the industry level, upholding shareholders’ 

confidence towards our operations. 

Employees

To build a culture that promotes team work and empowers 

employees at all levels to take prudent initiatives and to 

make positive changes for the continuous improvement of 

the quality of our business operations.
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Associated Motor Finance Company (AMF) Limited was incorporated on 25th July 1962 

under Companies Ordinance No. 51 of 1938 and subsequently reregistered under the 

Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

AMF is also a registered finance company with the Monetary Board of the Central Bank of 

Sri Lanka under the Finance Companies Act No. 78 of 1988.

Strong and visionary leadership, particularly during the era when Sri Lanka espoused a 

closed economy model, saw AMF leveraging indigenous business opportunities to establish 

a firm founding for the Company. 

Such exemplary leadership continued to propel AMF in later years and helped it 

successfully overcome many challenges and constraints like the 30-year war and its 

resultant economic fall out. 

AMF’s success is today plain to see - through factors such as recording its highest ever 

profit and deposit growth and becoming one of only two financial institutions in Sri Lanka 

to receive a Ratings upgrade (B to BB-) from RAM Ratings for the year 2008/09.

The principal activities of the Company consist of - Acceptance of Public Deposits, Leasing 

& Hire Purchase, Loans to Small & Medium Entrepreneurs, Real Estate Trading, Promissory 

Loans, Mortgage Loans, Import and Trading of Private and Commercial Vehicles.

 

Company
Profile
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For the year ended 31st March (Rs. Mn.) 2011/12 2010/11  Change (%)

Results of Operations

Gross income 313.73 184.35 70

Interest income 280.14 152.50 84

Interest expense 80.21 48.98 64

Net interest income 199.93 103.51 93

Profit before income tax 154.53 81.09 91

Profit after income tax 140.71 103.20 139

Gross dividends 16.83  –   100

Financial Position

At the year end (Rs. Mn.) 2011/12 2010/11  Change (%)

Total assets 1,425.13 825.87 73

Lending portfolio 1,080.74 519.88 108

Deposits from public 559.61 299.18 87

Borrowings 229.46 28.61 702

Shareholders’ funds 494.45 368.89 34

Market capitalisation 2,299.43 0.00 100

Information per Odinary Share

Earnings - basic (Rs.) 25.09 18.40 36

Dividends (Rs.) 3.00  –   100

Net asset Value (Rs) 88.16 65.77 34

Market value at the end of  

   the period (Rs.) 410.00 0.00 100

Price earnings (times) ordinary shares 16.34 0.00 100

Ratios

Return on average assets (%) 13.73 11.16 23

Return on average shareholders’ funds (%) 35.80 25.56 40

Net interest margin (%) 17.76 13.03 36

Interest cover (times) 1.93 1.66  0.27 

Dividend cover (times) 8.36 –  8.36 

Dividend pay out ratio (%) 11.96 0.00 100

Equity to assets (%) 34.70 44.67 -22

Compliance Ratios

Core capital to risk weighted assets (Tier1) (%) 37.81 49.92 -24

Total capital to risk weighted assets (Tier1 & 11) (%) 37.81 49.92 -24

Liquid assets to total assets (%) 5.69 9.41 -40

Liquid assets to deposits (%) 14.57 24.92 -42

NPL (%) 1.69 1.71 -1

NPL (net) (%) 0.39 0.23 70
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Financial
Highlights

FINANCIAL POSITION
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Dr. L. Rohan Karunaratne 
Chairman

It is with great pleasure that I present to you, the inaugural Annual Report of Associated 

Motor Finance Company PLC for the fiscal year ended 31st March 2012. 

As one of its key endeavours, your Board of Directors has worked diligently to achieve 

compliance in terms of all regulatory requirements of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka. We 

have also changed the composition of the Board with a view to giving an added focus to 

the enhancement of our levels of corporate governance. We have also successfully listed 

the Company on the Colombo Stock Exchange. 

In retrospect, your Company in its 50 years of existence has faced many challenges in 

terms of regulatory and operational issues. Nevertheless, we have always looked to 

transform such areas of challenge into opportunities and in dealing with each area on 

merit, have sought positive outcomes for the Company. This pragmatic approach enabled 

us to combat the impact of the Global economic crisis very effectively in the year 2009. 

Consequently, we recorded the highest ever profits in that year and became one of only 

two companies to obtain a rating upgrade from RAM during this period.

Whilst we successfully navigated this critical period which exerted unwelcome pressure 

on the local economy, we were also able to emerge from the debilitating effects of a 

thirty year military conflict, with high growth momentum. I am confident that we can now 

progress with momentum, despite the recent challenges faced by the local finance sector, 

due to a rapidly depreciating exchange rate, rising interest rates and increased vehicle 

duties. 

Your Company has reached a landmark – 50 years of dedicated operations. We have plans 

to celebrate this milestone in fitting manner.

On behalf of the Company, I take this opportunity to thank our shareholders and depositors 

whom we consider to be the Company’s key stakeholders, for the trust and confidence 

they have reposed in us. I look forward to their continued support in the future as well. My 

primary aim, as Chairman, is to steer the Company in the right direction ensuring that sound 

ethics and exemplary governance practices prevail across all areas of enterprise, with a 

view to safeguarding your lifeline investments with greater commitment, responsibility and 

transparency, and in the process to truly become the “Trustee of your Trust”.
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Chairman’s
Message

Your Company has 
reached a landmark – 
50 years of dedicated 
operations. We have 
plans to celebrate 
this milestone in 
fitting manner.
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J.P.I. Nalatha Dayawansa
Managing Director

The financial year 2011/12 was one of great challenges for the Company. The still lingering 

ill effects of the global financial crisis and an uncertain local economic environment still 

struggling to throw off the legacy of a thirty year war formed the backdrop to enterprise 

over the recent past.

I am pleased to inform all stakeholders of our Company that we have successfully 

surpassed all the challenges and obstacles faced and have recorded significant 

performance and achieved many milestones during the 50 year existence of the Company. 

Whilst our performance through history has been robust, we feel that the best is yet to 

come given the current economic climate which is conducive for business. Despite short 

term hiccups, the Company is poised to take centre stage and to reach expected heights.

We have always committed ourselves to fulfilling the expectations of our depositors and 

we offer not only the highest return on their investments within the CBSL stipulated rates, 

but we further ensure that their investments are safeguarded, through our safety lending 

mechanism which prevents undue risk whilst ensuring the highest return and maintenance 

of a higher core capital ratio. 

We pioneered the leasing of Motorcycles at a time when other institutions were reluctant 

to cater to this segment - the latter viewing it as high risk lending with low asset quality. 

Despite the inherent risk of this particular market segment, we have been able to leverage 

the opportunities on offer to our advantage and our latest financial returns bear testimony 

to our success. We have recorded an NPL of 1.69%, ROA of 13.73% and ROE of 35.80% 

as against the industry norms (CBSL), which stand at NPL - 5.7%, ROA - 4.5% and ROE - 

30.2%. These statistics clearly indicate how well the Company has mobilised its resources 

to optimise returns that are well above industry averages, whilst maintaining a healthy NPL 

ratio which is well below the industry. 

Our leasing service currently caters predominantly to customers in the Western, North 

Western and North Central provinces. The Company does not have a strong presence in the 

other provinces hence we have initially decided to extend our operations to cities located 

within selective provinces. 
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Managing Director’s
Message

We view with concern the presence of unregulated leasing companies that have encroached 

into this market and secured a substantial share of business of the LFCs and LLCs. 

It is a matter of great pride to note that our Company has completed 50 years of operation. 

A fitting celebration of this important event in our history is being planned.

Our main focus for the immediate future will be the consolidation of our core leasing 

business which has shown tremendous potential for growth and improvement and thereby 

to strengthen the core capital base of the Company. Further we intend to pursue diverse 

sources of funding to meet future investments in hire purchase and lease portfolios 

which will mitigate the risk of high concentration on public deposits and improve the 

maturity structure of assets and liabilities of the Company. However, the Company will 

predominantly be dependent on public deposits as its primary source of funding. In this 

regard, we intend to pay increasing focus to the senior citizen customer segment offering 

tailored instruments that will drive deposit mobilisation. 

In conclusion I wish to thank our depositors and customers – without you there will be no 

enterprise. To the Chairman and the Board I offer my gratitude for the guidance and support 

readily extended to me in managing the affairs of the Company. I express my sincere 

gratitude and appreciation to all staff past and present, for their collective effort and sheer 

dedication which have been invaluable in helping the Company achieve the tremendous 

progress and results that it has, over the years. Their contribution has built the Company’s 

stature as it stands today and positions it optimally for the journey that lies ahead.
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T.M.A. Sallay
Chief Executive Officer

It is with great pleasure and pride that I address you through this maiden Annual Report of 

Associated Motor Finance Company PLC for the year 2011/12. We also celebrate our 50th 

Anniversary, which is certainly an event worthy of celebration.

This has been a year of outstanding performance for the Company - an exceptional year 

comprised of significant achievements and many milestones surpassed.

We recorded higher growth in assets, income and profitability during 2011/12. Our 

revenue grew by 70% over the previous year and we achieved a record profit after tax 

of Rs. 140.71 Mn. and surpassing the Rs. 150 Mn. profit before tax which was just over 

90% increase over the previous financial year. Our ROA during the year stood at 13.7% as 

against the industry ROA of 4.5%.

The Company has been growing steadily. We recorded an asset growth of over 73% this 

year and have now reached the category of a medium size finance company. The main 

driver of growth of the asset base was the impressive growth recorded in the Leasing 

portfolio. The total asset base of the Company increased to Rs. 1,425.1 Mn. for the year 

under review from Rs. 825.9 Mn. recorded last year. The net leasing portfolio increased to 

Rs. 1,061.4 Mn. for the year under review from Rs. 501.7 Mn. in the previous year, which is 

a growth of 111.6%.

The total disbursements reached Rs. 869.3 Mn. in 2011/12, compared to Rs. 454.3 Mn. in 

2010/11, which amounts to a 91.3% increase over the previous year. This significant rise in 

disbursements contributed tremendously to increase our profits and also the asset base of 

the Company during the year.

Our public deposit base grew by 87% in 2011/12 compared to a growth of 9% in 2010/11. 

Our advertising campaign under the theme ‘Trustees of Your Trust’ focusing on senior 

citizens,in the course of mobilising public deposits and the outcome was a great success 

as was the impressive growth in deposit base during the year. The public deposits will 

gain prominence and form the main source of funding to meet our future credit growth, in 

the light of the current ceiling imposed on commercial banks’ credit disbursements by the 

Central Bank of Sri Lanka.
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Chief Executive Officer’s
Message

We have successfully negotiated our first ever Lease Securitisation Transaction of Rs. 230 

Mn. during 2011/12, for which NDB Investment Bank and Deutsche Bank AG mediated as 

the Structuring and Placement Agent and as the Trustee respectively. This accommodation 

was granted by a consortium of reputed lenders comprising of leading banks such as DFCC 

Bank and State Bank of India. This securitisation arrangement enabled the Company to 

reduce the weighted average cost of funds and to have a mix of diverse sources of funding.

In addition to our core leasing business, we also intend to consolidate the operations of 

import and trading of Prime Movers and Defender Jeeps, a market which we have been 

dominating for a considerable period. This operation which was commenced as a part of 

our diversification efforts, made a substantial contribution to the Company’s revenue.

I take this opportunity to extend my sincere gratitude to all the stakeholders, especially 

our valued customers whose support helped us to achieve the results and success that we 

report on. However, this result would not have been possible, if not for our depositors who 

have funded us, placing their utmost trust and confidence in us. I value their loyalty and 

patronage in the years to come too. 

I wish to also express my sincere gratitude and appreciation to the Chairman and Board 

of Directors for their strategic direction, guidance and co-operation which have been 

invaluable in conducting our business affairs along the designated path. 

I thank all past and present staff for extending their dedication, enthusiasm and hard work - 

your enterprise and passion has helped us deliver a year of excellent results.
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Dr. Rohan Karunaratne 
Chairman

J.P.I. Nalatha Dayawansa
Managing Director

Appointed to the Board of Associated Motor Finance Company PLC on 4th May 2011.

Dr. Karunaratne is a qualified Civil Engineer and holds PhDs in Construction Management 

and Business Management. He possesses an MBA in Business Administration and Bachelor 

of Engineering. 

In addition, Dr. Karunaratne holds extensive recognition and professional qualifications in 

the field of his speciality, Civil Engineering.

He has over 27 years of post-qualification experience in areas such as Civil Engineering, 

Building Construction, Engineering Consultancy, Construction Training, Lecturing in Civil 

Construction and Designing & Planning. 

Currently, Dr. Karunaratne holds key positions in several institutions and professional 

bodies. He is the President of the Ceylon Institute of Builders, the Chairman at both Human 

Resource Development (Pvt) Ltd. and Messrs A.K.K. Engineers (Pvt) Ltd., the Deputy 

Chairman of the International Institute of Management and the Immediate Past Chairman 

of the National Construction Association of Sri Lanka, the Advanced Construction Training 

Academy and NCASL Constructors (Pvt) Ltd.

Appointed as Executive Director to the Board of Associated Motor Finance Company Ltd., in 

1982 and as Managing Director, in 1995. 

Mr. Nalatha Dayawansa holds a Diploma in Economic & Management of the London School 

of Economics & Management in UK as well as a Diploma in Automobile Engineering from 

Stuttgart, Germany. He counts extensive training and proficiency both internationally and 

locally in the field of Automobile Engineering. His early grounding at DIMO, Mercedes Benz 

AG and Bosch Gmbh contributed to his vast knowledge and experience in this field and 

prompted him to commence his own business venture, Imperial Import & Export Company 

(Pvt) Ltd., pioneering the import of high end, used cars as well as Farm and Earth Moving 

Equipment and Prime Movers to Sri Lanka. 

He has over 30 years of extensive experience in many industries such as Finance, 

Hospitality & Leisure, Garments, Exports and Imports. 

In addition, he is currently the Chairman & Managing Director of Poltech (Ceylon) Ltd., a 

public company engaged in garment exports and continues as the Chairman & Managing 

Director of his maiden business venture, Imperial Import & Export Company (Pvt) Ltd.
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Board of
Directors

Mrs. W.A.S. Dayawansa
Director

Mr. J.P.I. Shanil Dayawansa
Executive Director

Appointed to the Board in 1995.

Mrs. Dayawansa holds directorship in other companies, most notably at Poltech (Ceylon) 

Ltd. a public company engaged in garment exports and Imperial Import & Export Company 

(Pvt) Ltd., a company engaged in importing and trading of used motor vehicles from UK. 

She is also the Managing Partner of Ayathi, a dress boutique, which caters exclusively 

to the high end market. She has over 15 years of experience in sectors such as Finance, 

Garments and Imports & Exports. 

Appointed to the Board in September 2009.

Mr. Shanil Dayawansa holds a Masters in International Business from Monash University, 

Australia and a Bachelor’s degree in Accounting and Management from the University of 

Essex, UK.

With his special aptitude in the field of Finance and Business Management, Mr. Dayawansa 

brings youthful dynamism to the Board and strengthens the Company’s Corporate 

Governance regime.
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Directors

Mr. K.D.L. Nanayakkara
Non-Executive Independent Director

Appointed to the Board in 29th November 2010.

Mr. Nanayakkara is a member of the Association of Accounting Technicians of Sri Lanka 

with over 30 years professional working experience in the fields of Accounting, Auditing, 

Management Consultancy and Company Secretarial Duties in Semi Government 

Corporations, Public-Listed Companies and Private Companies in Sri Lanka and over 6 years 

of overseas experience working for Multinational Companies.

In addition to the AAT qualification, Mr. Nanayakkara also holds an Advanced Diploma 

in Personnel Management and Industrial Law. He has completed examinations up to 

Professional Stage Part I of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, UK.

During his career, he has functioned as a Lecturer in Accountancy and Inquiring Officer 

for the Paddy Marketing Board where he served as Accountant for seven years; was 

the Director-Finance at Messrs Ceylon and Foreign Trades PLC over a period of six 

years and was the Group Accountant at the Imperial Group of Companies for 3 years. 

Mr. Nanayakkara was also a Marking Examiner and Examination Supervisor of the 

Association of Accounting Technicians of Sri Lanka for a period of over five years.

He is a Registered Company Secretary and an Authorised Representative of the Department 

of Inland Revenue. He is also the Managing Director of Nanayakkara Management Services 

(Pvt) Ltd., a registered Company handling Company Secretarial duties, accounting, taxation 

and management consultancy and the Managing Director of Majestic Investments (Pvt) Ltd., 

a registered company having investments in public and public-listed companies. 
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Mr. L.C.W. Edirisooriya
Non-Executive Independent Director

Appointed to the Board on 29th November 2010.

Mr. Edirisooriya holds a Bachelor of Commerce Special Degree from the University of 

Jayawardenapura, is an Associate Member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

Sri Lanka (ICASL) and is a Fellow Member of the Certified Management Accountants of 

Sri Lanka.

He is a practicing Chartered Accountant with his own firm, Edirisooriya & Co.

His work experience spans 25 years and covers areas such as Auditing, Financial 

Management, Fund Management, Consultancy work and Company Secretarial work for 

public-listed companies, corporations, banks and many other institutions. 

He has held positions of seniority in the Paddy Marketing Board, State Plantation 

Corporation, Shipping Corporation and Sri Lanka Ports Authority.

Mr. Edirisooriya is a senior lecturer in accountancy for various institutions including ICASL. 

He is the Managing Director of Access Company (Pvt) Ltd., a registered company handling 

company secretarial and management consultancy work. 

Board of
Directors
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T.M.A. Sallay
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Sallay is a fully-qualified member of the Institute of Certified Management Accountants 

of Australia and holds part qualification in the Chartered Institute of Management 

Accountants of the UK. He is currently reading for his Masters in Business Administration at 

the Asia University of Malaysia.

Mr. Sallay is a financial professional with over 30 years of extensive and diverse work 

experience in the fields of Finance, Auditing, Marketing, Credit and Recoveries, Project 

Management and Event Management. He has held many positions, both strategic and 

operational, in many organisations and has wide exposures in diverse sectors such as 

Finance, Hospitality, Healthcare, International Event Organisation, Communications and 

Trading and Manufacturing.

Mr. Sallay joined Associated Motor Finance Company Ltd. in 1997 as the Group Accountant. 

He was promoted to the post of General Manager in 2003 and to the post of CEO/General 

Manager in 2011. 

His past work experience has seen him focus on his core strengths in the realm of finance, 

through over 20 years of service with several established financial institutions.

M.K.P.J.A. Perera
Senior Manager - Fixed Deposits and Leasing/Hire Purchase

Mr. Perera counts extensive experience of over 35 years in the field of finance. Of this 

period, he has spent 20 years in managerial positions. 

K.I. Grero
Senior Manager - Administration and Personnel

Mr. Grero has 40 years of experience in the fields of Administration, Personnel and 

Marketing. He counts 30 years of experience in managerial positions within the Apparel 

and Finance industries.
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Management
Team

K.I.S. Grero
Manager - Marketing (Vehicles)

Mr. Grero counts 17 years of experience in the field of Sales and Marketing in sectors such 

as Travel, Tourism and Finance, of which 10 years were spent in managerial positions.

G.S.S. Gunasekera
Manager - Marketing (Leasing and Hire Purchase)

Mr. Gunasekera holds a Diploma in Marketing from the Faculty of Asia Lanka Vocational 

Education and a Higher Diploma in Practical Accountancy Training. He is also a part 

qualified member of the Accounting Technicians of Sri Lanka.

He has over 19 years of experience in the Finance industry, 9 years of which have been 

spent in managerial positions.

P.A. Nilan Perera
Manager - Finance and IT

Mr. Perera is a part qualified member of the Accounting Technicians of Sri Lanka and is a 

registered student of the Institute of Certified Management Accountants of Sri Lanka. He is 

also reading for his Bachelors in Information Technology through an external degree course 

offered via the University of Colombo.

He has over 19 years of experience in the field of accountancy of which 6 years have been 

spent in managerial positions.

Vajira Panditharatne
Manager - Recoveries

Mr. Panditharatne holds Diplomas in Writership and Communications as well as Psychology 

and Counselling.

He possesses over 9 years of experience in the Finance industry and 7 years in the field 

of Mass Media Communications. Of this period, 2 years were spent in managerial positions. 
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Financial Overview
AMFPLC recorded higher growth in assets, income and profitability during 2011/12. In the 

year under review, the Company achieved a record profit after tax of Rs. 140.71 Mn. while 

the profit before tax surpassed Rs. 150 Mn. recording over 90% growth over the previous 

financial year. The Company has been growing steadily recording an asset growth of over 

70% and reaching the category of medium size finance companies. 

Revenue
Income of the Company increased to Rs. 313.7 Mn. from Rs. 184.3 Mn., a growth of 70% 

over the previous year. Income comprises of interest income, income from trading of motor 

vehicles and other income.

Interest Income 
        

COMPOSITION OF

INTEREST INCOME

A - Finance Leases - 93%

B - Hire Purchase - 3%

C - Treasury Bills - 4%

CB

A

Interest income for the year under review increased from Rs. 152.5 Mn. to Rs. 280.1 Mn., a 

growth of 83.7%, mainly contributed by leasing interest which grew by 114.4%.
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Other Income
There was a marginal increase in other income which mainly constituted of income 

generated from the sale of motor vehicles. 

Interest Expenses
The interest expense of the Company increased by Rs. 31.30 Mn. to Rs. 80.2 Mn., an 

increase of 63.9%. This growth was due to the increase in interest expense on public 

deposits and also the cost on the securitisation loan obtained in the year under review. 

Net Interest Income (NII)
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The Company’s Net Iinterest Margin (NIM) increased by Rs. 96.4 Mn. in absolute terms, 

recording a growth of 93.1% over the previous financial year. Further, the Company’s NIM 

also increased by 4.73% to 17.76%.
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Staff Cost
Staff cost increased by 27.8% to Rs. 33.4 Mn. over the previous financial year. This is 

mainly due to the annual salary increment of around 25% on average granted to the 

employees during the year and partly due to the increase in number of employees to 57 

as at 31st March 2012 as against 43 as at 31st March 2011.

 

Bad Debts Expenses
During the year, the Company provided Rs. 14.6 Mn. for bad and doubtful debts which was 

an increase of Rs. 6.7 Mn. over the previous year. Despite the increase in the provision, 

AMFPLC was able to maintain a Gross NPL ratio of 1.69% which was slightly lower than 

previous financial year.

Administration and Selling Expenses
Administration and general expenses increased to Rs. 38.3 Mn. from Rs. 27.2 Mn., a 40.6% 

increase. The increase was mainly due to advertising, rent and maintenance expenses. 

Management Discussion
and Analysis
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The Company recorded profit before tax and net profit after tax of Rs. 154.5 Mn. and  

Rs. 140.7 Mn. respectively, which are the highest in the history of AMFPLC. 

Profitability Ratios (ROE and ROA)

GROWTH IN

ROE AND ROA
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Higher growth in profits enabled the Company to achieve the highest ROE and ROA in 

the year under review. The ROA in particular which measures the Company’s profitability 

against the asset base, increased to 13.7% from 11.2%, whilst ROE increased to 35.8% 

from 25.6%. 

Management Discussion
and Analysis
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The Company maintained a much higher ROA compared to industry during its last five 

years of operations, whilst ROE was marginally higher than the industry in the previous 

year and in the year under review.

Management Discussion
and Analysis
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Total Assets

GROWTH IN
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Company’s asset base increased from Rs. 825.9 Mn. to Rs. 1,425.1 Mn. in 2012, recording 

a remarkable growth of 73%. This growth was mainly due to the increase in lease portfolio 

resulting from a rise in business volumes during the year. 

Liabilities 
Total liabilities increased to Rs. 930.6 Mn. as at 31st March 2012 from Rs. 456.9 as at 31st 

March 2011, an increase of Rs. 473.7 Mn. This increase constituted of the increase of public 

deposits of Rs. 260.4 Mn. and the Securitisation loan of Rs. 230 Mn. obtained during the 

financial year 2011/12. 

Management Discussion
and Analysis
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GROWTH IN

PUBLIC DEPOSITS
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The Company’s deposit base had a moderate growth from 31st March 2008 to 31st March 

2011. However, it increased remarkably during the year ended 31st March 2012 compared 

to previous year. The increase was primarily due to our successful advertising campaign 

initiated for the first time, focusing the senior citizens for soliciting public deposits.

Shareholders’ Funds
Total shareholders’ funds increased by Rs. 125.56 Mn. recording a growth of 34% 

compared to the previous year. This increase was due to the net effect of the year’s net 

profit of Rs. 140.7 Mn. and the dividends paid Rs. 15.14 Mn. during the year. 

Capital Adequacy
The Risk Weighted Capital Adequacy Ratio and the Total Risk Weighted Capital Adequacy 

Ratio of the Company stood at 37.81% and they were well above the statutory 

requirements of 5% and 10% respectively. 

Management Discussion
and Analysis
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Economic review
(a) Real Sector
Economic Growth

Sri Lanka’s economic growth which reached 8% in 2010 continued on a similar velocity in 

2011. It had a steady growth of 8% to 8.5% during 2011 and recorded a growth of 8.3% at 

the end of the last quarter. 

The growth at the first quarter of 2012 declined to 7.9% and expected to remain at around 

7.2% in 2012. However, the growth for 2013 is expected to bounce back to 8.0% with 

increased domestic and foreign investment as the global economy starts to pick up next year. 

Sri Lanka’s economy sustained a high growth momentum since 2010, as the country 

continued to absorb the benefits of the cessation of three decade old war in 2009, which 

brought about consumer and investor confidence followed by favourable macroeconomic 

conditions, increased capacity utilisation, expansion of infrastructure facilities and renewed 

economic activity in the Northern and the Eastern Provinces. Sri Lanka’s per capita income 

increased to US$ 2,836 in 2011 from US$ 2,400 in the previous year. 
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Sri Lanka’s growth would have been between 8.5% and 8.9% in 2011, had the agriculture 

sector showed a high growth. The agriculture sector grew at 1.5% in 2011 due to the bad 

weather that affected the tea industry and the domestic rice supply. The industry sector 

and Service sector growths were the key drivers of growth in 2011. These two sectors 

grew by 10.3% and 8.6% respectively and their shares in the total GDP were 29.3% and 

59.5% respectively. The services sector, which is the largest sector in the economy, was 

able to sustain the growth due to expansion of infrastructure services and increasing 

income levels. Services such as domestic and foreign trade, transport, tourism, financial 

services, and communication, also grew at a higher rate. The growths in these sectors 

facilitated more employment opportunities which in turn helped to reduce the rate of 

unemployment to 4.2% in 2011 from 4.9% in the year 2010. 

The sectoral developments in GDP during the first quarter of 2012 showed a growth of 

11.5% in the Agriculture sector, 10.8% in the Industry sector and 5.8% in the service sector. 

(b)  Fiscal Sector
	 Government revenue declined (as a % of GDP) to 14.3% in 2011 from 14.6% in 2010. It 

is expected to rise to 14.7% in 2012. 

	 Government expenditure and net lending declined (as a % of GDP) to 21.4% in 2011 

from 22.9% in 2010. It is expected to decline further to 21.2% in 2012.

	 The overall budget deficit declined to 6.9% of GDP in 2011 from 8% of GDP in 2010. 

It is expected to decline to 6.2% of GDP in 2012. 

(c)  Monetary Sector
Interest Rates
	 Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase rates were stabilised at 7% and 8.5% respectively 

in 2011. However, these rates were increased by 50 basis points to 7.5% and 9% 

respectively at the end of Q1-2012.

	 Weighted Average Call Money (WACM) rate (with tax) increased to 8.24% at the end 

of Q4-2011 from 8.03% at the end of Q4-2010. This trend continued and WACM Rate 

at the end of Q1-2012 was recorded at 9.2%, which was 96 bps higher than the rate 

recorded in 2011. 
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	 The Treasury Bills rates for 03 months, 06 months and 12 months recorded a 

moderate increase during the first three quarters of 2011. However, these rates went 

up drastically at the end of Q4-2011 to 8.68%, 8.71% and 9.31% respectively. This 

increasing trend continued and recorded 11%, 11.06% and 11.32% respectively at the 

end of Q1-2012.

	 AWPLR (monthly) showed a moderate increase during the first three quarters of 2011 

and recorded a significant increase of 10.49% at the end of Q4-2011 and 12.42% at the 

end of Q1-2012.

	 Average Weighted Fixed Deposit Rate (AWFDR) increased to 8.95% and 9.84% at the 

end of Q4-2011 and Q1-2012 respectively from 8.20% recorded at the end of Q4-2010. 

	

Exchange Rates
During the first half of 2011, a substantial increase was recorded pertaining to the receipts 

on remittances, tourism and inflows to the capital and financial accounts and as a result, the 

rupee appreciated by 1.23% against the US$. However, the Rupee depreciated against the 

US$ by 0.54% during Q3-2011 due to sharp increase in import expenditure. The Central Bank 

of Sri Lanka devalued the Rupee by 3% in November 2011 with the intention of improving 

export competitiveness. The exchange rate stood at Rs. 113.90 at the end of 2011.

In the 1st quarter of 2012, the Central Bank of Sri Lanka abolished the Rupee trading band 	

to allow the exchange rate to adjust more freely ever before, which resulted the Rupee to 	

depreciate more than 11% against the US Dollar during the 1st quarter of 2012. 
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Inflation

Inflation continued to remain at mid-single digit levels for the 3rd consecutive year. In 

2011, annual average inflation, as measured by the Colombo Consumers’ Price Index (CCPI)

(2006/07=100), moved upward gradually and reached the peak level 7.2% in the 3rd 

quarter and declined to 6.7% and 5.9% at the end of the 4th quarter 2011 and 1st quarter 

of 2012 respectively.
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Industry Overview of Non-Bank Financial Sector
The Non-Bank Financial (NBF) sector consisting of Licensed Finance Companies (LFCs) and 

Specialised Leasing Companies (SLCs) continued its growth momentum during 2011. The main 

indicators in respect of capital, profitability, asset quality, credit growth and deposit base recorded 

impressive growths. However, a few LFCs continued to experience deterioration of capital and 

shortage of liquidity, which somewhat deterred the overall performance of the NBF sector.

Sector Highlights
31st March 2011 31st March 2012

Asset Growth 32.6% 24.7%

Credit Growth 40.7% 38.9%

Deposit Growth 24.1% 27.1%

Borrowing Growth 47.2% 21.8%

NPA Ratio 6.8% 4.8%

Capital Adequacy Ratio 7.2% 14.8%

Profit After tax (Rs. Bn.) 7.1 19.7

Branch Network 629 740

Management Discussion
and Analysis

	 Top NBFI represent 47% of industry asset base.



ASSOCIATED MOTOR FINANCE COMPANY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12

PAGE 30

	 Accommodations grew by 39% on year on year basis.

	 Deposits and borrowings continue to be the major funding sources with growth rates of 

27% and 22% on year on year basis.

Management Discussion
and Analysis
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Industry Maturity Gap needs attention

Management Discussion
and Analysis

NBFI sector has a negative assets and liabilities maturity gap up to 1 year of maturity, 

hence need to move towards long-term funding.



Industry Margins and Intermediation Cost

March 2010 March 2011 March 2012
% % %

Interest Income/Interest Earning Assets 22.6 20.5 19.4

Interest Expenses/Interest Bearing Liabilities 16.5 11.8 11.1

Net Interest Spread 6.1 8.8 8.3
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As at end of March 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
% % % % %

Interest Income 22.2 22.2 16.9 15.6 16.1

Interest Expenses 15.3 16.4 11.8 8.6 8.2

Net Interest Income Margin 6.9 5.8 5.1 7.0 7.9

Non-Interest Income 5.1 4.3 3.4 4.0 3.2

Non-Interest Expenses 7.7 7.1 5.8 6.4 5.7

Credit Growth - has given impetus to the sector

Management Discussion
and Analysis
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	 The NBFI sector credit recorded an impressive growth rate of 39% on YoY basis.
	 Four companies have recorded negative credit growth rates.

Management Discussion
and Analysis
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From where the credit growth has come

Finance leasing and loans against deposits have recorded 71% and 57% YOY growth rates 

respectively.

Assets Quality 

It showed a noteworthy improvement.

Management Discussion
and Analysis
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Deposits Growth
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Five LFCs represented 54% of total deposits of the sector. Interest rates were on increasing 

trend from December 2011. 

Borrowings - Growth 

Borrowing was another funding option and NBFI bottom line could be affected due to 

increasing finance cost.

Management Discussion
and Analysis
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and Analysis

Profitability

Profitability improved and noteworthy profitability levels were achieved primarily due to 

increased business volumes and margins.

Interest Rates Upper Limit

Trend in interest rates upper limit - upward moving

Source of graphs for the Industry Overview - Central Bank of Sri Lanka
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Risk management is the process of identification, analysis and either acceptance or 

mitigation of uncertainty in decision-making.

Company approach to risk management
The board is responsible for overall risk management function of the Company. The 

Integrated Risk Management Committee consists of two Non-Executive Directors, the Chief 

Executive Officer and other Key Management Personnel overseeing the Company’s risk 

management policies and controls. The responsibility of the committee is to assess the key 

risks faced by the Company and ensure adequacy and effectiveness of controls in place to 

mitigate the risks.

Credit Risk
Credit risk can be defined as borrower’s failure to repay a loan or otherwise meet a 

contractual obligation. A separate recovery office is established to manage the credit risk 

faced by the Company. It adopts strict credit risk evaluation processes by assessing credit 

worthiness of the customers, monitoring debt collection process and remedial actions and 

effective recovery processes.

This has been evidenced by a low NPL (Non-Performing Loans) ratio of 1.69% compared to 

the industry average of 5.7% for the year ended 31st March 2012.

Further, Company’s exposure to credit risk is less due to low level of average single 

borrowing. (The single borrowing exposure on average was about Rs. 100,000/- per 

customer in the year ended 31st March 2012.)

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the potential impact on interest income caused by the unexpected 

changes in the market interest rates. The market interest rate is analysed at regular 

intervals to identify the impact it could have on Company’s earnings. Company successfully 

manages interest rate risk by maintaining a mix of funding options and also maintaining 

high levels of lending rates which result in higher net interest margins. 
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Risk
Management

Liquidity Risk
The inability of the Company to meet its financial obligations on time is known as liquidity 

risk. The Company ensures its liquidity position by holding adequate liquid funds and 

effective review of assets and liabilities of the Company.

Company treasury function continuously maintains good relationships with banks and 

currently has an overdraft facility to meet its obligations.

 

Operational Risk
Operational Risk is defined as the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed processes, 

people, and systems or from external events. Operational risk is managed through a 

comprehensive internal control system. Company has outsourced internal auditing function 

to ensure adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls in place. Further, responsible 

personnel within the Company have been assigned the responsibility for managing 

operational risk on a day-to-day basis.

Company is investing in a new IT system for more effectively managing the risk. It is 

expected to be in operation in the coming year.

Strategic Risk 
Strategic Risk is exposure to loss resulting from a strategy that turns out to be defective 

or inappropriate. Company adopts three-year strategic planning process and continuous 

review system is in place to make necessary changes. 
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Finance companies (Corporate Governance) Direction No. 03 of 2008

(2)  The Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

01. (a) Approving and overseeing the finance company’s 

strategic objectives and corporate values and ensuring 

that such objectives and values are communicated 

throughout the Company.

Approving and overseeing strategic objectives are approved 

by the Board of Directors and communicated throughout the 

company by board meetings and management meetings. 

Company strategic objectives was approved on 20th April 

2011 and communicated throughout the Company.

Compliant

(b) Approving the overall business strategy of the Company, 

including the overall risk policy and risk management 

procedures and mechanisms with measurable goals, for 

at least the next three years.

We have formulated the business strategies with 

measurable goals for next three years.

Compliant

(c) Identifying the risk and ensuring implementation of 

appropriate systems for the prudent management of  

the risks.

It is in the implementation stage and steps will be taken 

to regularise this process.

Will be complied

(d) Maintaining a policy communication with all 

stakeholders, including depositors, creditors, shareholders 

and borrowers

Action will be taken to document and to maintain the 

policy of communication in the coming year.

Will be complied

(e) Reviewing the adequacy and the integrity of the finance 

company’s internal control system and management 

information system

The adequacy and the integrity of the Company’s 

internal control systems are reviewed by the Board Audit 

Committee by reviewing the internal audit reports, the 

minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are tabled at 

the Board meetings.

Compliant

(f) Identifying and designating key management personnel, 

who are in a position to:

(i) significantly influence policy

(ii) direct activities and

(iii) exercise control over business activities, operations 

and risk management.

Members of the Board have been identified and 

designated as KMPs by Board as defined in the Sri Lanka 

Accounting Standards.

Compliant

(g) Defining the areas of authority and key responsibilities 

for the Board and for the key management personnel

Compliant

(h) Ensuring that there is appropriate oversight of affairs of 

the finance company by key management personnel, 

that is consistent with the finance company’s policy

Compliant

(i) Periodically assessing the effectiveness of its governance 

practices including: 

(i) the selection, nomination, and election of Directors 

and appointment of key management personnel 

(ii) the management of conflicts of interest and 

(iii) the determination of weaknesses and 

implementation of changes where necessary.

Board carry out its functions effectively by delegating the 

functions of the Board such as the selection, nomination, 

and election of Directors to the relevant subcommittee 

Action will be taken to introduce ‘declaration of interest’ 

to identify and manage the conflicts of interests among 

the Board members in the coming year.

Compliant
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Corporate
Governance

(j) Ensuring the Company has an appropriate succession 

plan for key management personnel

An effective succession plan will be put in place for all 

key management personnel

Will be complied

(k) Meeting regularly with key management personnel to 

review policies, establish lines of communication and 

monitor progress towards corporate objectives

A constant review of policies is done at Board level. Compliant

(l) Understanding the regulatory environment The Board of Directors of the Company monitors the 

regulatory compliances at the monthly Board meetings.

Compliant

(m) Exercising due diligence in the hiring and oversight of 

External Auditors

The hiring and oversight of external auditors are carried 

out through the Board Audit committee.

Compliant

02. The Board shall appoint; define and approve the 

functions and responsibilities of, the Chairman and the 

Chief Executive Officer.

The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the 

Company have been appointed by the Board and the 

positions of Chairman and CEO are separate and held by 

two individuals.

Compliant

03. There shall be a procedure determined by the Board 

to enable Directors, upon reasonable request to 

seek independent professional advice in appropriate 

circumstances at the Company’s expense.

The Board shall resolve to provide separate independent 

professional advice to Directors to assist them in 

discharging their duties to the Company.

A Board approved procedure to obtain professional 

advice is in place and the Board has obtained 

professional advice in appropriate circumstances.

Compliant

04. A Director shall abstain from voting on any Board 

resolution in relation to matters in which he/she or any 

of his/her close relatives or a concern in which a Director 

has substantial interest, is interested and he/she shall 

not be counted in the quorum for the relevant agenda 

item at the Board meeting.

Any interests are disclosed at the Board meetings and 

the Directors abstains from voting in such a situation and 

he/she is not counted in the quorum.

Compliant

05. The Board shall have a formal schedule of matters 

specifically reserved to it for decision to ensure that the 

direction and control of the finance company is firmly 

under its authority.

A pre-set agenda for meetings ensures the direction and 

control of finance company is firmly under Board’s control 

and authority. The Board is in the process of implementing 

a new procedure with regard to the schedule of matters 

specifically reserved to it for decision.

Compliant



06. The Board shall, if it considers that the finance company 

is, or is likely to be, unable to meet its obligations or 

is about to become insolvent or is about to suspend 

payments due to depositors and other creditors, 

forthwith inform the Director of the Department of 

Supervision of Non-Bank Financial Institutions prior to 

taking any decision or action

No such situation has arisen during the year 2011/12. Compliant

07. The Board shall publish in the finance company’s Annual 

Report, an Annual Corporate Governance Report setting 

out the compliance with this Directions

Inaugural annual report will include this report. Compliant

08. The Board shall adopt a scheme of self-assessment to 

be undertaken by each Director annually, and maintain 

records of such assessments

The Company will adopt a scheme of self-assessment to 

be undertaken by each Director annually.

Will be compliant

(3)  Meetings of the Board

01. The Board shall meet regularly and Board meetings shall 

be held at least twelve times a year at approximately 

monthly intervals. Obtaining the Board’s consent through 

the circulation of written or electronic resolutions/papers 

shall be avoided as far as possible.

Board held twelve Board meetings during the year. Compliant

02. The Board shall ensure that arrangements are in place 

to enable all Directors to include matters and proposals 

in the agenda for regular Board meetings where such 

matters and proposals relate to the promotion of business 

and the management of risks of the finance company.

All the members were given equal opportunity to include 

matters and proposals in the agenda. Company will 

prepare a procedure to enable all Directors to include 

matters and proposals in the agenda in a formal manner 

for regular Board meetings where such matters and 

proposals relate to the promotion of business and the 

management of risks of the finance company.

Compliant

03. The Board procedures shall ensure that notice of at least

7 days is given of a regular Board meeting to provide all

Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board 

meetings, reasonable notice shall be given.

Timely notice is given on a regular Board meeting. Compliant
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04. A Director who has not attended at least two-thirds of 

the meetings in the period of 12 months immediately 

preceding or has not attended the immediately 

preceding three consecutive meetings held, shall cease 

to be a Director. Participation at the Directors’ meetings 

through an alternate Director shall, however, be 

acceptable as attendance.

An event where a Directors has not attended at least  

two thirds of the meetings in a period of 12 months or the 

immediately preceding three consecutive meetings, will 

be brought to the attention of the Board for a decision.

Compliant

05. Board shall appoint a Company Secretary, whose primary 

responsibilities shall be to handle the secretarial services 

to the Board and shareholder meetings and to carry 

out other functions specified in the statutes and other 

regulations.

Chart Business Systems (Pvt) Ltd., a Company registered 

with the Registrar of Companies as a qualified secretary 

handles the secretariat services to the Board and 

shareholder meetings and carry out other functions 

specified in the statues and other regulations.

Compliant

06. If the Chairman has delegated to the Company Secretary 

the function of preparing the agenda for a Board 

meeting, the Company Secretary shall be responsible for 

carrying out such function.

A pre-set agenda is prepared and any other matters 

will be added to the agenda by the Secretary upon prior 

approval.

Compliant

07. All Directors shall have access to advice and services 

of the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that 

Board procedures and all applicable laws, directions rules 

and regulations are followed.

A documented board approved procedure is in place 

for all the Directors to access the Company Secretary in 

order to ensure that Board procedures and all applicable 

laws, directions, rules and regulations are followed.

Compliant

08. The Company Secretary shall maintain the minutes of 

Board meetings and such minutes shall be open for 

inspection at any reasonable time, on reasonable notice 

by any Director.

The Company Secretary maintains the minutes which are 

open for inspection by any Director at any reasonable 

time.

Compliant

09. Minutes of Board meetings shall be recorded in sufficient 

detail so that it is possible to gather from the minutes, as 

to whether the Board acted with due care and prudence 

in performing its duties. The minutes of a Board meeting 

shall clearly contain or refer to the following:

The Company Secretary maintains minutes with sufficient 

details.

Compliant

(a) a summary of data and information used by the Board in

its deliberations;

(b) the matters considered by the Board;

(c) the fact-finding discussions and the issues of contention 

or dissent which may illustrate whether the Board was 

carrying out its duties with due care and prudence;



(d) the explanations and confirmations of relevant 

executives which indicate compliance with the Board’s 

strategies and policies and adherence to relevant laws 

and regulations;

(e) the Board’s knowledge and understanding of the risks to 

which the finance company is exposed and an overview 

of the risk management measures adopted; and

(f) the decisions and Board resolutions.

(4)  Composition of the Board	

01. The number of Directors on the Board shall not be less 

than 5 and not more than 13. A transitional provision 

will apply if the number of Directors on the Board of a 

finance company is either less than 5 or exceed 13 such 

companies may continue for a maximum of three years 

commencing 1st January 2009.

The Board comprises of 06 Directors which is within the 

statutory limits.

Compliant

02. The total period of service of a Director other than a

Director who holds the position of Chief Executive Officer 

or Executive Director shall not exceed nine years, and 

such period in office of a Non-Executive Director shall 

be inclusive of the total period of service served by such 

Director up to 1st January 2009.

A transitional provision will apply to a Director who 

has completed 9 years as at 1st January 2009, or who 

completes such term at any time prior to 31st December 

2009, may continue for a further maximum period of 3 

years commencing 1st January 2009.

Complied with. The total period of service of the current 

Directors, other than Executive Directors and Chief 

Executive Officer is less than nine-years.

Compliant
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03. An employee of a finance company may be appointed, 

elected or nominated as a Director of the finance 

company (hereinafter referred to as an ‘Executive 

Director’) provided that the number of Executive 

Directors shall not exceed one half of the number of 

Directors of the Board. In such an event, one of the 

Executive Directors shall be the Chief Executive Officer of 

the Company.

A transitional provision will apply that on the date of this

Direction, if the number of Executive Directors in a 

finance company is more than one half of the number of 

Directors on its Board, the Board shall expressly identify 

the number of Executive Directors in excess and inform 

the name of such Executive Directors to the Director 

of Department of Supervision of Non-Bank Financial 

Institutions of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka within three 

months from 1st January 2009. Thereafter such excess 

Executive Directors shall not be considered members of 

the Board.

The Board consists of 06 members of whom 03 

are Executive Directors, thus complying with the 

requirement.

Compliant

04. From 1st January 2012, the total number of independent 

Non-Executive Directors, of the Board shall be at least 

one-fourth of the total number of Directors.

A Non-Executive Director shall not be considered 

independent if he/she:

Board comprises of 03 Independent Non-Executive 

Directors out of 06 Directors.

Compliant

(a) has shares exceeding 2% of the paid up capital of 

the finance company or 10% of the paid up capital of 

another finance company.

(b) has or had during the period of two years immediately 

preceding his/her appointment as Director, any business 

transactions with the finance company as described in 

Direction hereof, aggregate value outstanding of which  

at any particular time exceeds 10% of the capital funds 

of the finance company as shown in its last audited 

Balance Sheet.

(c) has been employed by the Company during the two year 

period immediately preceding the appointment as Director.

Corporate
Governance



(d) has a relative who is a Director or Chief Executive Officer 

or a key member of the management team, or holds 

shares exceeding 10% of the paid up capital of the

finance company or exceeding 12.5% of the paid up 

capital of another finance company.

(e) represents a shareholder, debtor, or such other similar 

stakeholder of the finance company;

(f) is an employee or a Director or has a share holding of 

10% or more of the paid up capital in a company or 

business organisation

(i) which currently has a transaction with the finance 

company as defined in 09 of this Direction, aggregate 

value outstanding of which at any particular time 

exceeds 10% of the capital funds as shown in its last 

audited Balance Sheet of the finance company

(ii) in which any of the other Directors of the finance 

company is employed or is a Director or holds shares 

exceeding 10% of the capital funds as shown in its last 

audited Balance Sheet of the finance company; or

(iii) in which any of the other Directors of the finance 

company has a transaction as defined in Direction of these 

Directions, of which aggregate value outstanding at any 

particular time exceeds 10% of capital funds as shown in 

its last audited Balance Sheet of the finance company.

05. In the event an alternate Director is appointed to 

represent an Independent Non-Executive Director, the 

person so appointed shall also meet the criteria that 

applies to the Independent Non-Executive Director

No such situation arose during the year under review.

06. Non-Executive Directors shall have necessary skills and 

experience to bring an objective judgment to bear on 

issues of strategy, performance and resources

Complied with and their detailed profiles were given to 

SNBFI prior to appointment.

Compliant

07. A meeting of the Board shall not be duly constituted, 

although the number of Directors required to constitute 

the quorum at such meeting is present, unless at least 

one half of the number of Directors present at such 

meeting are Non-Executive Directors. This sub direction 

shall be applicable from 1st January 2012 onwards.

All the Board meetings held during the financial year 

2011/12 are duly constituted with more than one half of 

the number of Directors present at such meeting being 

consist of Non-Executive Directors.

Compliant
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08. The Independent Non-Executive Directors shall 

be expressly identified as such in all corporate 

communications that disclose the names of Directors of 

the finance company. The finance company shall disclose 

the composition of the Board, by category of Directors, 

including the names of the Chairman, Executive Directors, 

Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive 

Directors in the Annual Corporate Governance Report 

which shall be an integral part of the Annual Report.

Profiles of the Non-Executive Directors are disclosed in 

the Annual Report.

Compliant

09. There shall be a formal, considered and transparent 

procedure for the appointment of new Directors to the 

Board. There shall also be procedures in place for the 

orderly succession of appointments to the Board

The new appointments to the Board will be subject to 

Board approval Succession plan will be implemented.

Will be complied

10. All Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be 

subject to election by shareholders at the first general 

meeting after their appointment

(Not applicable for the current financial period)

11. If a Director resigns or is removed from office, the 

Board shall announce to the shareholders and notify the 

Director of the Department of Supervision of Non-Bank 

Financial Institutions of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka, 

regarding the Director’s resignation or removal and the 

reasons for such removal or resignation including but not 

limited to information relating to the relevant Director’s 

disagreement with the Board, if any

(Not applicable for the current financial period)

(5)  Criteria to Assess the Fitness and the Propriety of Directors

01. The age of a person who serves as Director shall not 

exceed 70 years. In this connection, the following general 

exemption shall apply for a Director who has reached 

the age of 70 years as at 1st January 2009 or who would 

reach the age of 70 years prior to 31st December 2009 

may continue in office for a further maximum period of  

3 years commencing 1st January 2009

All the age limits of the Directions are complied by the 

Directors.

Compliant
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02. A person shall not hold office as a Director or any other 

equivalent position in more than 20 companies/societies/

bodies corporate including subsidiaries or associate 

companies of the finance company. Provided that such 

Director shall not hold office of a Director or any other 

equivalent position in more than 10 companies that are 

classified as Specific Business Entities in terms of Sri Lanka 

Accounting and Auditing Standards Act No. 15 of 1995

The total number of positions held as a Director or any 

other position in companies/societies/body corporate 

including subsidiaries or associate companies of the 

Finance Companies are less than 20.

Compliant

(6)  The Management Functions Delegated by the Board

01. The Board shall not delegate any matters to a Board

Committee, Chief Executive Officer, Executive Directors or

Key Management Personnel, to an extent that such 

delegation would significantly hinder or reduce the ability 

of the Board as a whole to discharge its functions.

The Board may delegate any of their powers to the Board 

appointed committees such as Audit and Integrated Risk 

Management Committee and it ensures that there is no 

dilution of powers of the Board in the process.

Compliant

02. The Board shall review the delegation processes in place 

on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain relevant 

to the needs of the finance company

The Company is in the process of implementing a 

procedure to review the delegation process

(7)  The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

01. The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer shall 

be separate and shall not be performed by the same 

individual

Positions of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are 

separated. The Chairman is a Non-Executive Director and 

the Chief Executive Officer is not a Director.

Compliant

02. The Chairman shall be a Non-Executive Director in 

the case where the Chairman is not an Independent 

Non-Executive Director, the Board shall designate an 

Independent Non-Executive Director as the Senior 

Director with suitably documented terms of reference to 

ensure a greater independent element. The designation 

of the Senior Director shall be disclosed in the finance 

company’s Annual Report.
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03. The Board shall disclose in its Corporate Governance 

Report, which shall be an integral part of its Annual 

Report, the name of the Chairman and the Chief 

Executive Officer and the nature of any relationship 

[including financial, business family or other material/

relevant relationship(s)], if any, between the Chairman 

and the Chief Executive Officer and the relationships 

among members of the Board.

Board has agreed to disclose Director’s interest and 

relationship including financial business family or other 

material relationships between the Chairman and the 

Chief Executive Officer and the relationships among 

members of the Board as an agenda item at the Board 

Meetings effective 2012/13 - Note 34.

04. The Chairman shall-

(a) provide leadership to the Board;

(b) ensure that the Board works effectively and 

discharges its responsibilities; and

(c) ensure that all key and appropriate issues are 

discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

The Company is having a process of evaluating the 

Chairman by a Board Appraisal Form to evaluate whether 

the Chairman is providing the leadership to the Board, 

and ensuing that the Board works effectively and 

discharge its responsibilities and whether the appropriate 

issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

05. The Chairman shall be primarily responsible for 

preparation of the agenda for each Board Meeting, The 

Chairman may delegate the function of preparing the 

agenda to the Company Secretary.

The agenda is a prearranged document and any 

additional issues are added to the agenda by the 

secretary with the approval of the Chairman.

06. The Chairman shall ensure that all Directors are informed 

adequately and in a timely manner of the issues arising 

at each Board Meetings.

The Chairman ensures that all the Directors are properly 

briefed on issues arising at Board Meeting by submission 

of the agenda and Board papers with sufficient time prior 

to the Meeting.

07. The Chairman shall encourage all Directors to make a full 

and active contribution to the Board’s affairs and take the 

lead to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of 

the finance company.

Complied with.

08. The Chairman shall facilitate the effective contribution of

Non-Executive Directors in particular and ensure 

constructive relationships between Executive and  

Non-Executive Directors.

Complied with.

09. Subject to the transitional provisions contained herein, 

the Chairman, shall not engage in activities involving 

direct supervision of Key Management Personnel or any 

other executive duties whatsoever

The Chairman is a Non-Executive Director and the 

Chairman does not directly get involved in the 

supervision of Key Management Personnel or any other  

executive duties

Compliant
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10. The Chairman shall ensure that appropriate steps 

are taken to maintain effective communication with 

shareholders and that the views of shareholders are 

communicated to the Board.

The AGM of the Company is the main forum where the 

Board maintains communication with shareholders and that 

the views of shareholders are communicated to the Board.

Compliant

11. The Chief Executive Officer shall function as the apex

executive-in-charge of the day-to-day-management of 

the finance company’s operations and business.

As per the Company’s organisation chart it reveals 

that the Chief Executive Officer functions as the apex 

executive in-charge of the day-to-day of the 

finance company’s operations and business.

Compliant

(8)  Board Appointed Committees

01. Every finance company shall have at least the two 

Board committees set out in paragraphs 8(2) and 8(3) 

hereof. Each committee shall report directly to the Board. 

Each committee shall appoint a secretary to arrange its 

meetings, maintain minutes, records and carry out such 

other secretarial functions under the supervision of the 

Chairman of the Committee. The Board shall present a 

report on the performance, duties and functions of each 

committee, at an Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Board has established three board Committees 

namely an Audit Committee, Integrated Risk 

Management Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Compliant

Audit Committee

The following rules shall apply in relation to the Audit

Committee:

(a) The Chairman of the Committee shall be a Non-Executive 

Director who possesses qualifications and experience in 

accountancy and/or audit.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee is a Non-Executive 

Independent Director and a fellow member of Chartered 

Accountants of Sri Lanka and possesses qualifications and 

related experience.

(b) All members of the Committee shall be Non-Executive 

Directors.

All members of the Audit Committee are Non-Executive 

Directors.

Compliant
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(c) The Committee shall make recommendations on matters

in connection with-

(i) the appointment of the External Auditor for audit 

services to be provided in compliance with the relevant 

statutes;

(ii) the implementation of the Central Bank guidelines 

issued to Auditors from time to time;

(iii) the application of the relevant accounting standards; 

and

(iv) the service period, audit fee and any resignation or 

dismissal of the Auditor; provided that the engagement 

of the Audit Partner shall not exceed five years, and that 

the particular Audit Partner is not re-engaged for the 

audit before the expiry of three years from the date of 

the completion of the previous term.

Complied with.

(d) The Committee shall review and monitor the External

Auditor’s independence and objectivity and the 

effectiveness of the audit processes in accordance with 

applicable standards and best practices.

Complied with.

(e) The Committee shall develop and implement a policy 

with the approval on the engagement of an External 

Auditor to provide non-audit services that are permitted 

under the relevant statutes, regulations, requirements and 

guidelines. In doing so, the Committee shall ensure that 

the provision by an External Auditor of non-audit services 

does not impair the External Auditor’s independence 

or objectivity. When assessing the External Auditor’s 

independence or objectivity in relation to the provision of 

non-audit services, the Committee shall consider-

(i) whether the skills and experience of the Auditor make 

it a suitable provider of the non-audit services;

(ii) whether there are safeguards in place to ensure that 

there is no threat to the objectivity and/or independence 

in the conduct of the audit resulting from the provision of 

such services by the External Auditor; and

(iii) whether the nature of the non-audit services, the 

related fee levels individually and in aggregate relative 

to the Auditor, pose any threat to the objectivity and/or 

independence of the External Auditor;

The Company currently does not engage External Auditor 

to provide non-audit services.
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(f) The Committee shall, before the audit commences, 

discuss and finalise with the External Auditors the nature 

and scope of the audit, including-

(i) an assessment of the finance company’s compliance 

with the relevant Directions issued under the act and the 

management’s internal controls over financial reporting;

(ii) the preparation of Financial Statements in accordance 

with relevant accounting principles and reporting 

obligations; and

(iii) the co-ordination between Auditors where more 

than one auditor is involved.

The Company will be implementing from 2012/13 that 

is before the commencement and finalisation of the 

audit, the Audit Committee meets the External Auditors 

to discuss the nature and the scope of the audit and an 

assessment of the finance company’s compliance with 

relevant Directions, guidelines and according to the 

Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and auditing guidelines.

(g) The Committee shall review the financial information of 

the finance company, in order to monitor the integrity of 

the Financial Statements of the finance company, its

Annual Report, accounts and periodical reports prepared 

for disclosure, and the significant financial reporting 

judgments contained therein. In reviewing the finance 

company’s Annual Report and accounts and periodical 

reports before submission to the Board, the Committee 

shall focus particularly on-

(i) major judgmental areas;

(ii) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(iii) significant adjustments arising from the audit;

(iv) the going concern assumption; and

(v) the compliance with relevant Accounting Standards 

and other legal requirements.

The Board of Audit Committee is reviewing the Financial 

Statements before forwarding it to the Board for the 

approvals with effect from year 2011/12. 

(h) The Committee shall discuss issues, problems and 

reservations arising from the interim and final audits, and 

any matters the Auditor may wish to discuss including 

those matters that may need to be discussed in the 

absence of Key Management Personnel, if necessary.

Complied with.

(i) The Committee shall review the External Auditor’s 

management letter and the management’s response 

thereto.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the External Auditor’s 

management letter and the management responses 

thereto.
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( j) Committee shall take the following steps with regard to 

the internal audit function of the finance company-

(i) review the adequacy of the scope, functions and 

resources of the Internal Audit Department, and satisfy 

itself that the Department has the necessary authority to 

carry out its work;

(ii) review the internal audit programme and results 

of the internal audit process and, where necessary, 

ensure that appropriate actions are taken on the 

recommendations of the Internal Audit Department;

(iii) review any appraisal or assessment of the 

performance of the head and senior staff members of 

the Internal Audit Department;

(iv) recommend any appointment or termination of 

the head, senior staff members and outsourced service 

providers to the internal audit function;

(v) ensure that the Committee is appraised of resignations 

of senior staff members of the Internal Audit Department 

including the Chief Internal Auditor and any outsourced 

service providers, and to provide an opportunity to the 

resigning senior staff members and outsourced service 

providers to submit reasons for resigning;

(vi) ensure that the internal audit function is independent 

of the activities it audits and that it is performed with 

impartiality, proficiency and due professional care.

The Company’s internal audit functions were outsourced 

and carried out by independent professional audit 

firms and the audit reports were discussed at the 

Audit Committees and the relevant recommendations/

actions were taken Audit Committee has reviewed the 

adequacy of the scope, functions and resources of the 

Internal Audit Department. The Company’s internal audit 

functions have been outsourced, Internal audit function 

is independent of the activities since it is handled by 

outsourced people and they are reporting direct to the 

Audit Committee.

(k) The Committee shall consider the major findings of 

internal investigations and management’s responses 

thereto.

Audit Committee assigns internal investigations on major 

findings and obtains responses from the management.

(l) The Chief Finance Officer, the Chief Internal Auditor and 

a representative of the External Auditors may normally 

attend meetings. Other Board Members and the Chief 

Executive Officer may also attend meetings upon the 

invitation of the Committee. However, at once in six 

months, the Committee shall meet with the External 

Auditors without the Executive Directors being present.

The Chief Financial Officer and the Internal Auditor 

attends the meetings and Chief Executive Officer attend 

meetings upon the invitation.

(m) The Committee shall have-

(i) explicit authority to investigate into any matter within 

its terms of reference;

(ii) the resources which it needs to do so;

(iii) full access to information; and

(iv) authority to obtain external professional advice and 

to invite outsiders with relevant experience to attend, if 

necessary.

Terms of reference has been presented and approved. 
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(n) The Committee shall meet regularly, with due notice of 

issues to be discussed and shall record its conclusions in 

discharging its duties and responsibilities.

The Committee has met regularly and the audit reports 

were issued to its members in advance, with issues 

discussed at meetings and appropriate actions taken. We 

have had 02 meetings during 2011/12.

(o) The Board Shall, in the Annual Report, disclose in an 

informative way-

(i) details of the activities of the Audit Committee,

(ii) the number of Audit Committee Meetings held in the 

year-and

(iii) details of attendance of each individual member at 

such meeting.

Will be complied with.

(p) The secretary of the Committee (who may be the 

Company Secretary or the head of the internal audit 

function) shall record and keep detailed minutes of the 

Committee Meetings.

The Company Secretary acts as the secretary of the Audit 

Committee

(q) The Committee shall review arrangements by which 

employees of the finance company may, in confidence, 

raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial 

reporting, internal control or other matters. Accordingly, 

the Committee shall ensure that proper arrangements 

are in place for the fair and independent investigation of 

such matters and for appropriate follow-up action and 

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the 

finance company’s relations with the External Auditor.

The Company is in the process of implementing a 

process to encourage raise concerns regarding such 

matters.

Integrated Risk Management Committee

03. (a) The Committee shall consist of at least one Non-

Executive Director, a Chief Executive Officer and 

key management personnel supervising broad risk 

categories, i.e., credit, market, liquidity, operational 

and strategic risks. The Committee shall work with key 

management personnel very closely and make decisions 

on behalf of the Board within the framework of the 

authority and responsibility assigned to the Committee.

The Integrated Risk Management Committee consists 

of two Non-Executive Directors, two Executive Directors, 

Chief Executive Officer and other key management 

personnel who are supervising the Company’s credit, 

market, liquidity, operational and strategic risks.

It is in the implementation stage and steps will be taken 

to regularise this process.
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(b) The Committee shall assess all risks, i.e., credit, market, 

liquidity, operational and strategic risks to the Finance

Company on a monthly basis through appropriate risk 

indicators and management information. In the case of

subsidiary companies and associate companies, risk 

management shall be done, both on the finance 

company basis and Group basis.

Company will take appropriate action to strengthen this 

area from April 2012 onwards.

(c) The Committee shall review the adequacy and 

effectiveness of all management level committees 

such as the Credit Committee and the Asset-Liability 

Committee to address specific risks and to manage those 

risks within quantitative and qualitative risk limits as 

specified by the Committee.

Company will take appropriate action to strengthen  

this area.

(d) The Committee shall take prompt corrective action to 

mitigate the effects of specific risks where such risks 

are at levels beyond the prudent levels decided by 

the Committee on the basis of the finance company’s 

policies and regulatory and supervisory requirements.

Company will take appropriate action to strengthen  

this area.

(e) The Committee shall meet at least quarterly to assess all 

aspects of risk management including updated business 

continuity plans.

Company will take appropriate action to have regular 

meetings from April 2012 onwards.

(f) The Committee shall take appropriate action against the 

officers responsible for failure to identify specific risks 

and take prompt corrective actions as recommended 

by the Committee, and/or as directed by the Director of 

the Department of Supervision of Non-Bank Financial 

Institutions of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

The Company will take actions to document a disciplinary 

procedure.

(g) The Committee shall submit a risk assessment report 

within a week of each meeting to the Board seeking the 

Board’s views, concurrence and/or specific directions.

The process will be strengthened from next year onwards.

(h) The Committee shall establish a compliance function 

to assess the finance company’s compliance with laws, 

regulations, Directions, rules, regulatory guidelines, internal 

controls and approved policies on all areas of business 

operations. A dedicated compliance officer selected from 

Key Management Personnel shall carry out the compliance 

function and report to the Committee periodically.

The process will be strengthened from next year onwards.

Corporate
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(9)  Related Party Transaction

02. The Board shall take the necessary steps to avoid any 

conflicts of interest that may arise from any transaction of 

the finance company with any person, and particularly with 

the following categories of persons who shall be considered 

as “related parties” for the purposes of this Direction-

(a) any of the finance company’s subsidiary companies;

(b) any of the finance company’s associate companies;

(c) any of the Directors of the finance company;

(d) any of the finance company’s Key Management

Personnel;

(e) a close relation of any of the finance company’s

Directors or Key Management Personnel;

(f) a shareholder owns shares exceeding 10% of the paid 

up capital of the finance company;

(g) a concern in which a Director of the finance company 

or relative of a Director or a shareholder who owns 

shares exceeding 10% of the paid-up capital of the 

finance company, has substantial interest.

The Related Party Transaction Policy is in place, which 

describes the related parties, types of related party 

transactions and the favourable treatment granted to the 

said parties and stipulates Board members to avoid any 

conflicts of interest that may arise from any transaction 

of the Company.

03. The transactions with a related party that are covered in 

this Direction shall be the following:

(a) Granting accommodation,

(b) Creating liabilities to the finance company in the form 

of deposits, borrowings and investments,

(c) Providing financial or non-financial services to the 

finance company or obtaining those services from the 

finance company,

(d) Creating or maintaining reporting lines and 

information flows between the finance company and 

any related party which may lead to share proprietary, 

confidential or otherwise sensitive information that may 

give benefits to such related party.

The Company compiles the dealings with regard 

to related party transactions from the information 

generated through the integrated system. 

Further the Company is in the process of further 

strengthening the monitoring mechanism in this regard.

04. The Board shall ensure that the finance company does 

not engage in transactions with a related party, in a 

manner that would grant such parties “more favourable 

treatment” than that is accorded to other similar 

constituents of the finance company. In this context, 

“more favourable treatment” shall mean:

The Board has ensured that the Company does not 

provide more favourable treatment at the time of 

engaging in transactions with the related parties. 

Corporate
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(a) Granting of “total net accommodation” to a related party, 

exceeding a prudent percentage of the finance company’s 

regulatory capital, as determined by the Board. The ‘total 

net accommodation’ shall be computed by deducting 

from the total accommodation, the cash collateral and 

investments made by such related party in the finance 

company’s share capital and debt instruments with a 

remaining maturity of 5 years or more.

(b) Charging of a lower rate of interest than the finance 

company’s best lending rate or paying a rate of interest 

exceeding the rate paid for a comparable transaction 

with an unrelated comparable counter party,

(c) Providing preferential treatment, such as favourable 

terms, covering trade losses and/or waiving fees/

commissions, that extend beyond the terms granted in 

the normal course of business with unrelated parties,

(d) Providing or obtaining services to/from a related party 

without a proper evaluation procedure,

(e) Maintaining reporting lines and information flows 

between the finance company and any related party 

which may lead to share proprietary, confidential or 

otherwise sensitive information that may give benefits 

to such related party, except as required for the 

performance of legitimate duties and functions.

(10)  Disclosures

01. The Board shall ensure that-

(a) Annual Audited Financial Statements and periodical

Financial Statements are prepared and published 

in accordance with the formats prescribed by the 

supervisory and regulatory authorities and applicable 

accounting standards, and

Annual Financial Statements and periodical Financial 

Statements are prepared and published in accordance 

with the defined standards.

(b) Such statements are published in the newspapers in an 

abridged form, in Sinhala, Tamil and English.

Published the statements in the newspapers in all three 

languages.

02. The Board shall ensure that the following minimum 

disclosures are made in the Annual Report:

(a) A statement to the effect that the Annual Audited

Financial Statements have been prepared in line 

with applicable accounting standards and regulatory 

requirements, inclusive of specific disclosures.

A statement to the effect has been included in the 

“Statement of Directors’ Responsibility”.

Corporate
Governance



ASSOCIATED MOTOR FINANCE COMPANY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12

PAGE 58

(b) A report by the Board on the finance company’s 

internal control mechanism that confirms that the 

financial reporting system has been designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 

financial reporting, and that the preparation of Financial 

Statements has been done in accordance with relevant 

accounting principles and regulatory requirements.

The effectiveness of the finance company’s internal 

control mechanism has been certified by the Directors 

in the “Directions statement on Internal Control over 

Financial Reporting”.

(c) The External Auditor’s certification on the effectiveness 

of the internal control mechanism in respect of any 

statements prepared or published after 31st March 2010.

The Auditors’ certification on the effectiveness of the 

internal control mechanism will be obtained.

(d) Details of Directors, including names, transactions with 

the finance company.

This has been disclosed under the “Annual Report of the

Board of Directors on the affairs of the Company”. (give 

reference to disclosures).

(e) Fees remuneration paid by the finance company to the

Directors in aggregate in the annual reports published 

after 1st January 2010.

The fees and remuneration paid has been disclosed 

under short term employment benefits paid on Note ……. 

of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

(f) Total net accommodation as defined in 9(4) outstanding 

in respect of each category of related parties and the net 

accommodation outstanding in respect each category of 

related parties as a percentage of the finance company’s 

capital funds.

The total net accommodations granted to related parties 

are disclosed in Note 34 of the Notes to the Financial 

Statements.

(g) The aggregate values of remuneration paid by the 

finance company to its Key Management Personnel and 

the aggregate values of the transactions of the finance 

company with its Key Management Personnel during 

the financial year, set out by Broad categories such as 

remuneration paid, accommodation granted, deposits or 

investment made in the finance company.

Disclosed in Note 34 of the Notes to the Financial 

Statements.

(h) A report setting out details of compliance with prudential 

requirements, regulations, laws and internal controls and 

measures taken to rectify any material non-compliances.

Disclosed in the Annual Report of the Board of Directors 

on the Affairs of the Company.

(i) A statement of the regulatory and supervisory concerns 

on lapses in the finance company’s risk management, or 

non-compliance with the Act ,and the rules and

Directions that have been communicated by the Director 

of Supervision of non-bank financial institutions , if so 

directed by the Monetary Board to be disclosed to the 

public, together with the measures taken by the finance 

company to address such concerns.

There were no considerable non-compliance by the 

Company, however the minor lapses were addressed by 

the Company has been communicated to the Director of 

Supervision of non-bank financial institutions.

( j) The External Auditors certification of the compliance with 

the act and rules and direction issued by the monitory 

board in the annual corporate governance report 

published after 1st January 2011.

The Company has obtained a certificate from External 

Auditors over the compliance of corporate governance 

directions and the Company is in the process of 

strengthening the procedures.
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Board Committee
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Audit Committee Report
The Company’s Audit Committee was constituted on 8th September 2011 and the 

members were appointed by the Board of Directors of Associated Motor Finance PLC, 

comprises of two Independent Non-Executive Directors, and are chaired by  

Mr. L.C.W. Edirisooriya.

The members of the Audit Committee are -

Mr. L.C.W. Edirisooriya 	 - 	Chairman, Non-Executive Independent

Mr. K.D.L. Nanayakkara 	 - 	I ndependent Non-Executive and Independent

Mr. L.C.W. Edirisooriya is a Bachelor of Commerce Special Degree holder at the University  

of Sri Jayawardenapura, Associate Member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of  

Sri Lanka and a Fellow Member of Certified Management Accountants of Sri Lanka. He is a 

Director of Access Company (Pvt) Ltd.

Mr. K.D.L. Nanayakkara is a member of the Association of Accounting Technicians of  

Sri Lanka, partly qualified member of Chartered Institute of Management Accountants,  

UK and also a holder of Advanced Diploma in Personal Management and Industrial Law.  

He is the Managing Director of Nanayakkara Management Services (Pvt) Ltd, a registered 

company handling Company Secretarial Duties, Accounting, Taxation and Management 

Consultancy. He is also the Managing Director of Majestic Investments (Pvt) Ltd.

The Company’s Secretaries Chart Business Systems (Pvt) Ltd. function as the Secretaries to 

the Audit Committee.

The Company’s management is responsible for the Financial Statements and for 

maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. The key purpose of the Audit 

Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibility for -

a.	T he quality and integrity of the Company’s Financial Statement and financial reporting 

process including the preparation, presentation and adequacy of disclosures in the 

Financial Statements of the Company in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standards.

b.	T he Company’s compliance with financial reporting and information requirement 

of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and other relevant financial reporting-related 

regulations.



c.	E nsure that the Company’s internal controls and risk management are adequate to 

meet the requirement of Sri Lanka Auditing Standards and Compliance by the Company 

with legal and statutory requirements.

d.	 Assessing the independence and performance of the Company’s External Auditors.

e.	 Monitoring of timely payments of all statutory liabilities.

The Audit Committee invited Mr. J.P.I.N. Dayawansa, Managing Director, Mr. J.P.I.S. 

Dayawansa, Executive Director, Mr. T.M.A. Sallay, the CEO/GM, Mr. G.S.S. Gunasekera, 

Marketing Manager, Mr. P.M.V.A. Panditharathna, Mr. P.A.N. Perera, Manager-Finance and IT 

to attend its meetings.

During the year the Committee carried out the following activities:

	R eview of Quarterly Financial Statements and discussion of these Financial Statements 

with management.

	R eview of the Audited Financial Statements for the year and discussion of those 

Financial Statements with the management and External Auditors.

	D iscussion of the management letter issued by the External Auditors and monitoring 

follow-up action by the management.

	R eview of the internal audit plan for the Company and monitoring the performance of 

the Internal Auditors.

	R eview of the internal audit reports and monitoring follow-up action by the 

management of the Company.

The Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the external audit and recommended to the 

Board the re appointment of Messrs SJMS Associates Chartered Accountants as the External 

Auditors of the Company for the ensuing financial year, subject to the approval of the 

shareholders at the General Meeting.

L.C.W. Edirisooriya
Chairman

K.D.L. Nanayakkara
Director
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Report of the Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee, appointed by and responsible to the Board of Directors, 

comprises two Non-Executive Independent Directors and two Executive Directors -

Mr. K.D.L. Nanayakkara	 -	C hairman, Non-Executive and Independent

Mr. L.C.W. Edirisooriya	 -	N on-Executive and Independent

Mr. J.P.I.S. Dayawansa	 -	E xecutive 

Mr. J.P.I.N. Dayawansa	 -	E xecutive 

The remuneration policy of the Company endeavours to attract, motivate, and retain 

quality management in a competitive environment with the skills, experience and quality 

demanded necessary to achieve the objectives of the Company. This is to ensure that the 

Company is able to attract, motivate and retain high quality management in a competitive 

environment and this is well-placed to meet the challenges of the Company. The 

Committee is responsible for ensuring that the total compensation package is competitive 

and can attract the best talent in the market.

The remuneration framework of the Company for the Non-Executive Chairman, Managing 

Director and Corporate Management is designed to create and enhance value to all 

stakeholders of the Company and to ensure alignment qua the short-and long-term 

interests of the Company and its Executives and in designing competitive compensation 

packages, the Committee consciously balances the short-term performance with medium-

to long-term goals of the Company.

Remuneration levels are reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee through a 

process that considers individual and overall performance of the Company and market 

practices. In addition External Consultants provide analysis and advice to ensure Key 

Management Personnel remuneration is competitive in the market.

All Executive remuneration decisions are made at Board level, upon recommendation by 

the Remuneration Committee. 

Non-Executive Directors do not receive equity-based compensation or any performance-

based remuneration. Directors’ fees cover all Board activities including membership of 

Board committees.

K.D.L. Nanayakkara
Chairman

20th June 2012



REPORT OF THE INTEGRATED RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Board has responsibility for determining the strategic direction of the organisation and 

for the environment and the structure for risk management to operate effectively. This 

has done through establishing integrated risk management committee. It consists of 

two Non-Executive Directors - K.D.L. Nanayakkara (The committee chairman), L.C.W. 

Edirisooriya and two Executive Directors - J.P.I.S. Dayawansa and J.P.I.N. Dayawansa and the 

Chief Executive Officer - T.M.A. Sallay, who are supervising the Company’s credit, market, 

and liquidity, operational and strategic risks.

The Committee present reports on the risks identified in their respective areas of 

supervision. Mitigation measures are continuously assessed and developed overtime. 

Ensure that measures in place are viable and actively understood and supported by all 

officers. Constant review of processes and market analysis ensure that risk identification is 

a continuous process.

Meetings shall be held at least three times per year. Additional meetings may be convened 

at the request of any one of the members of the Committee.

The schedule of meetings of the Committee shall be aligned with the schedule of 

meetings of the Board in such a way that the meetings of the Committee shall be 

scheduled before the meetings of the Board, for effective reporting.

Minutes of these meetings are tabled at Board meeting so that the entire Board 

is kept appraised of the Committee’s discussion, and the steps taken thereafter for 

implementation.

K.D.L. Nanayakkara
Committee Chairman
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The Annual Report of the
Board of Directors 

The Board of Directors of Associated Motor Finance Company PLC has pleasure in presenting 

to the shareholders the Annual Report together with the Audited Financial Statements for the 

year ended 31st March 2012. The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with 

Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

Legal Status
Incorporated as a Limited Liability Company on 25th July 1962 under Chapter 145 of the 

Companies Ordinance No. 51 of 1938 and a registered Finance Company with the Monetary 

Board of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka under the Finance Companies Act No. 78 of 1988 and 

re-registered under the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and changed its status of the name as 

Associated Motor Finance Company PLC on 09th August 2011. Ordinary shares of the Company 

are listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange from 23rd May 2011 onwards.

Principal Activities
The Company accepts deposits from the public and provides loans, leasing and hire purchase 

financial accommodations to its customers.

Financial Statements and Auditors’ Reports
The Turnover of the Company was Rs. 313,732,756/- as compared with a turnover of 

Rs. 184,349,918/- during previous financial year.

The Financial Statements duly signed by the Directors and the Auditors Report thereon for the 

year ended 31st March 2012 are included. 

Changes In Accounting Polices 	
Changes in Accounting Policies is in Note 4. to the Finance Statements.

Interests Register
The Directors have declared their interests in compliance with the Companies Act and these have 

been entered in the Interests Register.

Stated Capital
The Stated Capital of the Company as per the Audited Accounts as at 31st March 2012 was 

Rs. 56,086,280/-

Directors
The Directors of the Company who held office during the year under review are setout with the 

number of shares they held as at date.

Name of the Director No. of Shares held

J.P.I.N. Dayawansa (w.e.f. 01.01.1990) 2,204,213

A.S. Dayawansa (w.e.f. 15.09.1995) 98,784

J.P.I.S. Dayawansa (w.e.f. 10.09.2009) 92,386

K.D.L. Nanayakkara (w.e.f. 29.11.2010) 500

L.C.W. Edirisooriya (w.e.f. 29.11.2010) –

L.R. Karunaratne (w.e.f. 04.05.2011) –
The Remuneration and Other Benefits of the Directors. 

Directors’ fees and other emoluments were Rs. 3,430,000/-.
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Corporate Governance
The Board has taken necessary measures to ensure proper systems and procedures are in 

place within the Company by adopting sound Corporate Governance practice.

Auditors
The Financial Statements for the year have been audited by Messrs. SJMS Associates, 

Chartered Accountants.

Messrs. SJMS Associates are deemed to have been re-appointed as auditors in terms of the 

Section 158 of the Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007. 

A resolution proposing the Directors be authorised to determine their remuneration will be 

submitted at the Annual General Meeting.

The Auditors, Messrs SJMS Associates, was paid Rs. 257,040/- as audit fees by the Company.  

As far as the Directors are aware, the Auditors do not have any relationships (other than 

that of an auditor) with the company other than those disclosed above.  The Auditors also 

do not have any interests in the Company.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

ASSOCIATED MOTOR FINANCE COMPANY PLC

J.P.I. Nalatha Dayawansa	 K.D.L. Nanayakkara 

Director	 Director

Chart Business Systems (Pvt) Ltd.

Secretaries

27th June 2012
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Directors’ Responsibility for 
Financial Reporting 

The following statement sets out the responsibilities of the Board of Directors in relation to the 

preparation and presentation of the Financial Statement of the Company. These responsibilities 

differ from those of the Auditors, which are set out in their Report appearing on page 67 of this 

Annual Report.

The Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and Finance Companies Act No. 78 of 1988 requires that the 

Directors are required to prepare Financial Statements for each financial year, giving a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at the end of the financial year and the profit or 

loss of the Company for the financial year.

The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that the Company maintains adequate 

accounting records, which are sufficient enough to prepare Financial Statements that disclose 

with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Company. Further, the Directors have the 

responsibility for the general supervision, control and administration of the affairs and business of 

the Company.

The overall responsibility for the Company’s internal control systems lies with the Board of 

Directors. Whilst recognising the fact that there is no single system of internal control that could 

provide absolute assurance against material misstatements and fraud, the Directors confirm 

that the prevalent internal control systems are so designed that, there is reasonable assurance 

that the assets are safeguarded and transactions properly authorised and recorded so that 

materials misstatements and irregularities are either prevented or detected within a reasonable 

period of time. The Finance Committee under the guidance of the Management to monitor the 

effectiveness of the system of internal controls and recommends modifications where necessary.

The Directors are responsible to ensure that the Financial Statements presented in the Annual 

Report give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2012 and 

the profit/loss for the year then ended. 

The Directors confirm that the Financial Statements have been prepared and presented in 

accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting and Auditing Standards Act No. 15 of 1995, Finance 

Business Act No. 42 of 2011 and the Directions issued by the Monetary Board of the Central Bank 

of Sri Lanka.

The Directors confirm that suitable accounting policies have been use and applied consistently 

and that all applicable accounting standards have been followed in the preparation of the 

Financial Statements. Furthermore, reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates have been 

made in the preparation of these Financial Statements. 

Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge all taxes, statutory dues and levies payable 

by the Company as at the Balance Sheets date have been paid for or where relevant provided for.

By order of the Board,

 

Secretaries

Chart Business Systems (Private) Ltd.

27th June 2012



TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ASSOCIATED MOTOR FINANCE 
COMPANY PLC

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Associated Motor Finance 

Company PLC (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2012, 

and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement 

for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 

statements in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards. This responsibility includes: 

designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation 

and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, 

whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and 

making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Scope of Audit and Basis of Opinion

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Those 

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 

principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 

overall financial statement presentation.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. We therefore believe that our 

audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, so far as appears from our examination, the company maintained proper 

accounting records for the year ended 31st March 2012 and the financial statements give a 

true and fair view of the company’s state of affairs as at 31st March 2012 and its profit and 

cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

In our opinion, these financial statements also comply with the requirements of Section 

151(2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and the requirements of the Finance Business 

Act No. 42 of 2011.

SJMS ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Colombo

9th May 2012
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For the year ended 31st March  2011/12 2010/11
Note  Rs. Rs.

Income  313,732,756 184,349,918 

Interest and similar income 10  280,142,869 152,498,743 

Interest expense and similar charges 11  (80,212,767) (48,984,169)

Net interest income  199,930,103 103,514,574 

Other income 12  33,589,887 31,851,175 

Personnel costs  (30,731,378) (22,499,225)

Employee retirement benefit expenses  (2,622,148) (3,638,157)

Provision for losses on loans, advances and assets  (6,775,278)  –   

Administration and general expenses  (38,306,774) (27,273,963)

Profit from operations 13  155,084,411 81,954,403 

VAT on financial services  (558,535) (861,513)

Profit before taxation  154,525,876 81,092,890 

Income tax expense 14  (13,820,631) 22,108,119 

Profit after tax  140,705,245 103,201,009 

Basic/diluted earnings per share 15  25.09 18.40 
					   

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 73 to 95 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.				  
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As at  31.03.2012 31.03.2011
Note  Rs. Rs.

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents  24,925,261 7,345,060 

Investments in Government Securities 16  45,165,887 29,963,651 

Deposits with banks 17  11,000,000 40,382,500 

Long-term investments 18  244,594 244,594 

Investment fund account  471,139  –   

Loans against fixed deposits 28  1,204,895 2,461,872 

Net investment in leases 19  1,061,427,861 501,708,334 

Net investment in hire purchase 20  19,312,806 18,170,273 

Other assets 22  83,374,470 40,319,783 

Inventories 23  50,317,962 57,906,330 

Deferred tax assets 24  78,242,122 83,942,736 

Investment properties 25  20,738,866 20,564,491 

Intangible assets 26  4,162,917 4,677,917 

Property and equipment 27  24,536,577 18,179,960 

Total assets  1,425,125,355 825,867,500 

Liabilities

Bank overdraft  57,625,994 13,029,577 

Public deposits  559,608,902 299,181,197 

Securitisation loan  164,200,000 0 

Interest payable on public deposits  14,071,662 15,385,341 

Other liabilities 29  131,684,752 115,863,788 

Retirement benefit obligations 30  3,484,578 3,520,817 

Pledge loan from CFC  – 10,000,000 

Total liabilities  930,675,888 456,980,719 

Shareholders' Fund    

Stated capital 31  56,086,280 56,086,280 

Other reserves 32  25,977,587 18,942,325 

Retained earnings 33  412,385,600 293,858,176 

 494,449,467 368,886,781 

Total liabilities and shareholders' funds  1,425,125,355 825,867,500 

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 73 to 95 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

I certify that these Financial Statements comply with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.	

							     

T.M.A. Sallay
Head of Finance

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and the presentation of these Financial Statements.

Signed for and on behalf of the Board,

							     

J.P.I. Nalatha Dayawansa	 K.D.L. Nanayakkara	
Director	 Director 		

9th May 2012		
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Stated Capital General Statutory Retained Total
For the year ended 31st March 2012 Capital Reserves Reserves Reserve Fund Earnings

Rs.  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 1st April 2010  56,086,280  17,930  1,029,052  12,735,293  195,817,217  265,685,772 

Net profit for the year  –    –    –    –    103,201,009  103,201,009 

Transfer to reserve fund  –    –    –    5,160,050  (5,160,050)  –   

Balance as at 31st March 2011  56,086,280  17,930  1,029,052  17,895,343  293,858,176  368,886,781 

Net profit for the year  –    –    –    –    140,705,245  140,705,245 

Dividend paid  –    –    –    (15,142,559)  (15,142,559)

Transfer to reserve fund  –    –    –    7,035,262  (7,035,262)  –   

Balance as at 31st March 2012  56,086,280  17,930  1,029,052  24,930,605  412,385,600  494,449,467 
					   

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 73 to 95 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.				  
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For the year ended 31st March  2011/12 2010/11
 Rs. Rs.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net profit before taxation  154,525,876 81,092,890 

Adjustments for:

Depreciation  7,487,231 6,429,283 

Profit on disposal of property and equipment  (1,682,391) (122,333)

Amortisation of deferred income  (904,124)  –   

Income tax surcharge  135,518  –   

Income tax refund  (3,634,785)

Provision for bad and doubtful debts  6,715,278 (8,895,383)

Provision for gratuity  (36,239) 1,565,253 

Interest on term deposits  60,740,883 47,479,865 

Lease interest  1,148,674 1,355,012 

Interest on commercial papers  599,984  –   

Unabsorbed input VAT on lease creditor - irrecoverable tax  486,794 396,396 

Operating profit before working capital changes  225,582,699 129,300,983 

(Increase)/decrease in Government Securities and other investments  14,180,265 119,924,342 

(Increase)/decrease in other assets  (41,797,710) (4,672,528)

(Increase)/decrease in lease rental receivables  (562,070,836) (245,841,818)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories 7,907,101 (21,260,148)

Increase/(decrease) in public deposits   260,427,705 25,648,871 

(Increase)/decrease in investments in hire purchase  (5,506,502) (4,235,489)

Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities  8,854,825 46,924,945 

Increase/(decrease) in pledge loan from CFC  (10,000,000) 10,000,000 

 (328,005,151) (73,511,825)

Cash generated from operations  (102,422,453) 55,789,158 

Tax paid  (5,878,269) (5,889,049)

Income tax refund  3,634,785  –   

Gratuity paid  –   (818,000)

Interest paid  (62,654,546) (46,704,258)

Net cash flow from operating activities  (167,320,483) 2,377,851 
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For the year ended 31st March  2011/12 2010/11
 Rs. Rs.

Cash Flow from Investment Activities

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment  1,367,726 218,000 

Purchase of property and equipment  (10,674,814) (4,758,127)

Purchase of investment property  (261,915) (3,476,040)

Purchase of real estate stock  (318,733) (16,172,904)

Investment in fund  (471,139)  –   

Purchase of intangible assets  –   (5,150,000)

Net cash flow from investing activities  (10,358,875) (29,339,071)

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Dividend paid  (15,142,559)  –   

Proceeds Securitisation loan  164,200,000  –   

Proceeds on sale and lease back arrangement 7,000,000  –   

Repayment of lease creditor  (5,394,299) (3,748,764)

Net cash flow from financing activities  150,663,142 (3,748,764)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (27,016,215) (30,709,984)

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year  (5,684,517) 25,025,467 

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year  (32,700,732) (5,684,517)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank  24,925,261 7,345,060 

Bank overdrafts  (57,625,994) (13,029,577)

 (32,700,732) (5,684,517)
					   

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 73 to 95 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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1. General Information

1.1 Domicile and Legal Form

Associated Motor Finance Company PLC, 

(the “Company”), is a public limited 

liability company, incorporated and 

domiciled in Sri Lanka. The registered 

office and the principal place of business 

of the Company is located at 89, Hyde 

Park Corner, Colombo 2. Ordinary shares 

of the Company are listed on the Colombo 

Stock Exchange from 23rd May 2011 

onwards.

The Company is a registered finance 

company under the Finance Companies 

Act No. 78 of 1988. 

1.2  Principal Activities 
and Nature of Operations
The Company accepts deposits from the 

public and provides loans, leasing and 

hire purchase financial accommodations 

to its customers.

2.  Significant 
accounting judgments, 
estimates and 
assumptions
The preparation of Financial Statements 

in conformity with SLAS requires 

management to make judgments, 

estimates and assumptions that influence 

the application of accounting policies and 

the reported amounts of assets, liabilities 

income and expenses. Judgments 

and estimates are based on historical 

experience and other factors, including 

expectations that are believed to be 

reasonable under the circumstances and 

assumptions based on such knowledge 

and expectation of future events. Hence 

actual experience and results may differ 

from these judgments and estimates. The 

estimates and underlying assumptions are 

reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 

to accounting estimates are recognised 

in the period in which the estimates are 

revised if the revision affects only that 

period or in the period of the revision 

and future periods as well if the revision 

affects both current and future periods. 

Revision to accounting estimates are 

dealt with in accordance with Sri Lanka 

Accounting Standard 10 - (Revised 

2005) ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in 

Accounting Estimates and Errors’.

2.1  Going Concern

When preparing the Financial Statements, 

the Directors have made an assessment 

of the ability of the constituents of the 

Company to continue as a going concern 

in the foreseeable future and they do not 

foresee a need for liquidation or cessation 

of trading, taking into account all available 

information about the future.

2.2  Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for 

all unused tax losses and tax credits to 

the extent it is probable that taxable 

profits will be available against which 

these losses can be utilised. Significant 

management judgments are required to 

determine the amount of deferred tax 

assets that can be recognised, based 

upon the likely timing and level of future 

taxable profits together with the future 

tax planning strategies.		

	

3.  Preparation of 
financial statements

3.1  Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements (income 

statement, balance sheet, statement 

of changes in equity and the cash flow 

statements, together with the accounting 

policies and notes) have been prepared in 

compliance with the Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standards (SLAS) issued by The Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka 

and the requirements of the Companies 

Act No. 07 of 2007 and the Finance 

Companies Act No. 78 of 1988.	

3.2  Date of Authorisation for 
Issue

The Financial Statements for the year 

ended 31st March 2012 were authorised 

for issue by the Board of Directors on 9th 

May 2012.

3.3  Basis of Preparation

The Financial Statements are prepared 

on an accrual basis under the historical 

cost convention. Where appropriate the 

accounting policies are disclosed in the 

succeeding notes. Assets and liabilities 

are grouped by nature and listed in an 

order that reflect their relative liquidity.

3.4  Foreign Currency 
Transactions

The Financial Statements of the Company 

are presented in Sri Lankan rupees, which 

is the Company’s functional currency.
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All transactions in currencies other 

than the functional currency are 

recorded in Sri Lankan rupees, using the 

exchange rates prevailing at the time 

the transactions were effected. At each 

Balance Sheet date, monetary assets 

and liabilities denominated in foreign 

currencies are translated to Sri Lankan 

rupee equivalents at the exchange 

rate prevailing on the Balance Sheet 

date. Exchange differences arising on 

settlement of monetary items and 

translation of monetary items, are 

recognised in profit or loss in the year in 

which they arise.

3.5  Events after the Balance 
Sheet Date

All material events after the Balance 

Sheet date have been considered and 

where appropriate adjustments and/

or disclosures have been made in 

the respective Notes to the Financial 

Statements.

4.  Significant 
accounting policies 

4.1  Assets and the Bases of 
their Valuation

4.1.1  Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise 

bank and cash balances. Bank overdrafts 

that are repayable on demand and form 

an integral part of the Company’s cash 

resources are included as a component of 

cash and cash equivalents for the purpose 

of the cash flow statement.

4.1.2  Investment in 
Government Securities

Investment in Government Securities 

represent those securities held to 

maturity and stated at the value of the 

bills purchased and the discount accrued 

thereon.

4.1.3  Long-Term Investments

Long-term investments are valued at 

cost, with provision being made for any 

permanent diminution in value, such 

reductions being determined and made 

for each investment individually. Income 

from these investments is recognised 

only to the extent that the right to receive 

dividends is established. 

4.1.4  Investment in Leases

Assets leased to customers, which 

transfer substantially all the risks and 

rewards associated with ownership 

other than legal title, are accounted for 

as finance leases in accordance with 

Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 19 - 

(Revised 2005) ‘Leases’. Rentals falling 

due in the future under finance leases net 

of initial rentals received, unearned lease 

income and provision for doubtful debts 

are classified as investment in leases in 

the Balance Sheet.

4.1.5  Hire Purchase Assets

Assets hired to customers under hire 

purchase agreements, which transfer 

all the risks and rewards incidental to 

ownership as well as the legal title at 

the end of such contractual period are 

classified as Investment in Hire Purchase. 

Such assets are accounted for in a similar 

manner as finance leases.

4.1.6  Provision for Loan Losses

Provision for possible loan losses is made 

on the basis of a continuous review of 

all advances to customers in accordance 

with the Finance Companies (Provision for 

bad and doubtful debts) Direction No. 3 of 

2006 issued by Central Bank of Sri Lanka. 

Accordingly, specific provisions have been 

made as follows: 

All advances in arrears for  
   a period of 6 to 12 months 50%

All advances in arrears over 
   12 months 100%

In addition, wherever it is considered 

prudent, further provisions are made on 

specifically identified loans and advances.	

4.1.7  Trade and Other 
Receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated 

at the amounts they are estimated to 

realise, net of provisions for bad and 

doubtful debts.

4.1.8  Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost 

and estimated net realisable value, after 

making due allowances for obsolete and 

slow moving items. Net realisable value is 

the price at which inventories can be sold 

in the normal course of business after 

allowing for cost of realisation. Cost is 

calculated using FIFO method.	

4.1.9  Investment Property

Investment property which is property 

held to earn rentals and/or for capital 

appreciation, is stated at cost net 

of accumulated depreciation and 
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accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Buildings are depreciated at a rate of 5% 

and no depreciation is charged on land. 

A review for impairment is done at the 

Balance Sheet date and market value of 

the property is disclosed.

4.1.10  Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is recognised if it is 

probable that future economic benefits 

that are attributable to the asset will 

flow to the enterprise and the cost of 

the asset can be measured reliably in 

accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standard 37 - ‘Intangible Assets’. 

Accordingly, these assets are stated in the 

Balance Sheet at cost less accumulated 

amortisation and impairment losses. 

Subsequent expenditure on acquisition 

and improvement of intangible assets 

is capitalised only when it increases 

the standard of performance of these 

assets and the future economic benefits 

embodied in these assets will flow to 

the Company. Intangible assets with 

finite lives are amortised over the useful 

economic life and assessed for impairment 

whenever there is an indication that the 

intangible asset may be impaired. The 

amortisation period and the amortisation 

method for an intangible asset with a 

finite useful life is reviewed at the end 

of financial year. Intangible assets consist 

of computer software and are stated 

at cost less accumulated amortisation. 

Amortisation is effected at 10% per 

annum on cost on a straight-line basis

4.1.11  Finance Leases

Assets held under finance leases are 

initially recognised as assets of the 

Company at their fair value at the 

inception of the lease or, if lower, at the 

present value of the minimum lease 

payments. The corresponding liability to 

the lessor is included in the Balance Sheet 

as a finance lease obligation.

4.1.12  Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at 

cost less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses if any. 

The cost of property and equipment 

is the cost of purchase or construction 

together with any incidental expenses 

thereon. Depreciation is not provided on 

freehold land. Depreciation is provided on 

a straight-line basis calculated to write off 

the cost of the asset over its estimated 

useful life in equal instalments as follows:

Asset Rate

Motor vehicles 20%

Furniture and fittings 10%

Office equipment 10%

Generators and air conditioners 10%

Computer equipment 20%

Telephone system 20%

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is 

available for use, and ceases at the earlier 

of the date that the asset is classified as 

held for sale and the date that the asset 

is derecognised.			 

	

4.1.13  Impairment of Assets

The Company assess at each reporting 

date whether there is an indication 

that an asset may be impaired. If any 

such indication exist, or when annual 

impairment testing for an asset is 

required, the Company makes an 

estimate of the asset’s recoverable 

amount. An asset’s recoverable amount 

is the higher of an asset’s or cash-

generating unit’s fair value less costs to 

sell and its value in use and is determined 

for an individual asset, unless the asset 

does not generate cash inflows that are 

largely independent of those from other 

assets or groups of assets. Where the 

carrying amount of an asset exceeds 

its recoverable amount, the asset is 

considered impaired and is written down 

to its recoverable amount. Impairment 

losses of continuing operations are 

recognised in the Income Statement 

in those expense categories consistent 

with the function of the impaired asset, 

except for property previously revalued, 

where the revaluation was taken to 

equity. In this case, the impairment 

is recognised against the revaluation 

reserve to the extent that it reverses 

a previous revaluation surplus. An 

assessment is made at each reporting 

date as to whether there is any indication 

that previously recognised impairment 

losses may no longer exist or may 

have decreased. Previously recognised 

impairment losses other than in respect 

of goodwill, are reversed only if there 

has been an increase in the recoverable 

amount of such asset. Such increase is 

recognised to the extent of the carrying 

amount had no impairment losses been 

recognised previously.
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4.2  Liabilities and Provisions

4.2.1  Taxation

4.2.1.1  Current Taxation

Provision for income tax is based on the 

elements of income and expenditure 

as reported in the Financial Statements 

and computed in accordance with the 

provisions of Inland Revenue Act No. 10 

of 2006 and amendments thereto.

4.2.1.2  Deferred Taxation

Deferred tax is recognised using the 

Balance Sheet liability method on 

temporary differences at the Balance 

Sheet date between the tax bases of 

assets and liabilities and their carrying 

amounts for financial reporting purposes. 

Deferred tax liabilities generally are 

recognised for all taxable temporary 

differences and deferred tax assets 

are recognised to the extent that it 

is probable that taxable profit will be 

available against which deductible 

temporary differences, carry-forward of 

unused tax credits or unused tax losses 

can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax 

assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet 

date and reduced to the extent that it is 

no longer probable that sufficient taxable 

profit will be available to allow all or part 

of the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are 

reassessed at each Balance Sheet date 

and are recognised to the extent that it 

has become probable that future taxable 

profit will allow the deferred tax asset to 

be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 

measured at tax rates that are expected 

to apply in the year when the liability is 

settled or asset is realised, based on the 

tax rates and tax laws that have been 

enacted or substantively enacted as at the 

Balance Sheet date.

Income tax relating to items recognised 

directly in equity is recognised in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred 

tax liabilities are offset, if a legally 

enforceable right exists to set off current 

tax assets against current tax liabilities 

and those deferred taxes relate to the 

same taxable entity and the same 

taxation authority.

4.2.2  Defined Benefit Plan - 
Gratuity

The Company is liable to pay gratuity 

in terms of the Payment of Gratuity Act 

No. 12 of 1983, according to which a 

liability to pay gratuity arises only on 

completion of 5 years of continued service. 

In order to meet this liability, a provision 

is carried forward in the Balance Sheet, 

determined using the formula method 

prescribed in the Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standard 16 - (Revised 2006) ‘Employee 

Benefits’, The interest cost and the gratuity 

charge for the period, if any, is included as 

an expense in the Income Statement. The 

provision is not externally funded, nor has 

it been actuarially valued.	

	

4.2.3  Defined Contribution 
Plans

Employees’ Provident Fund 
Contribution and Employees’ Trust  
Fund Contribution

Employees are eligible for EPF and ETF 

contributions in line with respective 

statutes and regulations. The Company 

contributes the defined percentages of 

gross emoluments of employees to the 

approved Employees’ Provident Fund 

and to the Employees’ Trust Fund. All 

contributions made are recognised as an 

expense in the Income Statement.

4.2.4  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the 

Company has a present obligation (legal 

or constructive) as a result of a past 

event, it is probable that the Company 

will be required to settle the obligation, 

and a reliable estimate can be made of 

the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is 

the best estimate of the consideration 

required to settle the present obligation 

at the Balance Sheet date, taking into 

account the risks and uncertainties 

surrounding the obligation. Where a 

provision is measured using the cash 

flows estimated to settle the present 

obligation, its carrying amount is the 

present value of those cash flows.

4.2.5  Capital Commitments and 
Contingencies

Capital commitments and contingent 

liabilities as at the date of the Balance 

Sheet are disclosed in the respective notes 

to the Financial Statements. Contingent 

assets are disclosed, where the inflow of 

an economic benefit is probable.
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5.  Income Statement

5.1  Revenue Recognition

5.1.1  Lease

In accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standard 19 - (Revised 2005) ‘Leases’, 

recognition of finance income on leasing is 

accounted based on a pattern reflecting a 

constant periodic rate of return on capital 

outstanding. The excess of aggregate lease 

rentals receivable over the cost of the 

leased asset constitutes the total unearned 

interest income at the commencement of 

the contract. The unearned interest income 

is taken into revenue on an accrual basis 

over the term of the lease commencing 

from the month in which the first rental is 

due, in proportion to the declining capital 

outstanding balance. Non-performing 

leases are those leases where the rentals 

are overdue for 6 months or more. Interest 

income accrual is suspended from the 

date on which a lease is classified as 

non-performing and credited to “Interest 

in suspense”. Thereafter such income is 

recognised on a cash basis.

5.1.2  Hire Purchase

Recognition of interest income from 

hire purchase facilities is similar to that 

of leases, which recognises interest 

income based on a pattern reflecting a 

constant periodic rate of return on capital 

outstanding. Interest income is taken 

into revenue on an accrual basis over the 

term of the contract commencing from 

the month in which the first rental is 

due, in proportion to the declining capital 

outstanding balance. Non-performing hire 

purchase facilities are facilities in which the 

rentals are overdue for 6 months or more. 

Interest income accrual is suspended from 

the date on which the facility is classified 

as non-performing and credited to “Interest 

in suspense”. Thereafter, such income is 

recognised on a cash basis.

5.1.3  Loans and Advances

Interest receivable on loans and advances 

is recognised on accrual basis. Interest 

ceases to be taken into revenue when the 

relevant loans and advances are classified 

as non-performing. Accrual of interest 

income is suspended from the date on 

which the loan or advance is classified 

as non-performing, and is credited to 

‘Interest in suspense’. Thereafter such 

income is recognised on cash basis.

5.1.4  Dividend Income

Dividend income from investments is 

recognised when the Company’s right to 

receive payment is established.

5.1.5  Interest Income on 
Investments in Government 
Securities

Interest receivable is taken to the Income 

Statement on an accrual basis, based on a 

pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate 

of return.	

5.1.6  Interest Income on 
Deposits with Banks

Interest receivable is taken to the Income 

Statement on an accrual basis. 

5.1.7  Overdue Interest

Overdue interest from rental receivables 

are accounted for on a cash basis.

5.1.8  Rental Income

Rental income is recognised on an accrual 

basis.

5.1.9  Recovery of Bad Debts

Bad debts recovered are recognised on 

a cash basis as and when the debts are 

recovered.	

5.1.10  Profit/Loss from Sale of 
Property, Plant and Equipment

Profit/loss from sale of property plant and 

equipment is recognised in the period in 

which the sale occurs.

5.2  Expenditure Recognition

Expenses are recognised in the Income 

Statement on the basis of a direct 

association between the cost incurred 

and the earning of specific items 

of income. All expenses incurred in 

the running of the business and in 

maintaining the property and equipment 

in a state of efficiency has been charged 

to the Income Statement. In terms of 

the provisions of Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standard 33 - ‘Revenue Recognition and 

Disclosures in the Financial Statements 

of Finance Companies’, interest and other 

expenses payable are recognised on an 

accrual basis.

		

5.3  Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an 

expense in the period in which they are 

incurred, except to the extent that they 

are directly attributable to the acquisition, 

construction or production of a qualifying 

asset, in which case they are capitalised 

as part of the cost of that asset.

5.4  Earnings Per Share 

The Company presents basic and diluted 

earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary 

shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing 

the profit or loss attributable to ordinary 

shareholders of the Company by the 

weighted average number of ordinary 

shares outstanding during the period. 

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting 

the profit or loss attributable to ordinary 

shareholders and the weighted average 

number of ordinary shares outstanding 

for the effects of all dilutive potential 

ordinary shares.
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6.  Cash flow statement
The cash flow statement has been 

prepared using the indirect method in 

accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standard 9 - ‘Cash Flow Statements’.

7.  Segmental reporting
The Company’s internal organisation and 

management is structured based on 

individual products and services which 

are similar in nature and process and 

where the risk and return are similar. The 

primary segments represent this business 

structure.	

8.  Directors’ 
responsibility statement
The Directors’ acknowledge the 

responsibility for true and fair presentation 

of the Financial Statements in accordance 

with the books of accounts and Sri Lanka 

Accounting Standards.		

	

9.  New Accounting 
Standards issued but 
not effective as at the 
balance sheet date

9.1  General

The Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of Sri Lanka, decided to converge fully 

with International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS) with effect from 

1st January 2012. In accordance with 

this decision, new accounting standards 

have been issued and existing accounting 

standards have been upgraded in 

line with corresponding International 

Accounting Standards (IAS) and IFRS.

9.2  Title of New Standards

(i)	 LKAS 32 (Previously issued as 

Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 44 - 

‘Financial Instruments Presentation’)

(ii)	 LKAS 39 (Previously issued as 

Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 45 - 

‘Financial Instruments Recognition 

and Measurement’ 

(iii)	 SLFRS 7 (Previously issued as 

Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 46 - 

‘Financial Instruments Disclosure’)

(iv)	 SLFRS 1 - First time adoption 

of Sri Lanka Financial Reporting 

Standards

9.3  Effective Date for 
Mandatory Application

Financial year ending 31st March 2013.

9.4  Financial Impact on the 
Application of these Standards 
in the Financial Year Ending  
31st March 2013

The impact is not currently known or 

reasonably estimated.			 
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For the year ended 31st March  2011/12 2010/11
 Rs. Rs.

10.  Interest and similar income
Interest income from leasing  221,953,276 103,519,629 

Interest income from the hire purchases  6,270,288    7,364,907 

Income on service finance  19,763,266 8,982,414 

Interest on overdue rentals  21,552,557 17,089,642 

Interest on investments in Government Securities  10,603,483 15,542,152 

 280,142,869 152,498,743 

11.  Interest expense and similar charges     

Interest on public deposits  60,740,883 47,479,865 

Interest on overdrafts  1,110,282 149,293 

Interest on commercial papers  599,984  –   

Securitisation expenses  16,612,944  –   

Other interest expenses  1,148,674 1,355,012 

 80,212,767 48,984,169 

12.  Other income
Income from sale of motor vehicles (Note 12.1)  24,587,631 20,384,788 

Dividend income  57,438 56,567 

Interest income on savings accounts  16,193  –   

Rent income  1,303,667 1,178,568 

Sundry income  977,914 330,063 

Bad debt recoveries  373,643 392,688 

Reversal of NPL provision  – 9,023,501 

Amortisation of deferred income  904,124  –   

Vehicle hire income  1,250 485,001 

Profit on disposal of equipment  1,682,391  –   

Income tax refunds  3,634,785  –   

Exchange gain  50,852  –   

 33,589,887 31,851,175 

12.1  Income from Sale of Motor Vehicles
Sales  174,922,948 126,826,783 

Less: 1% sales tax – (1,453,400)

Less: Cost of sales  (130,634,961) (91,413,081)

Less: Direct costs  (19,700,357) (13,575,514)

Profit for the year  24,587,631 20,384,788 
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For the year ended 31st March  2011/12 2010/11
 Rs. Rs.

13.  Operating expenses among others include the following:
Directors' remuneration  3,430,000 480,000 

Directors' retirement benefit  360,000  –   

Staff costs (Note 13.1)  22,647,769 19,929,399 

Depreciation  6,972,231 5,906,575 

Auditor's remuneration  229,500 172,125 

13.1  Staff Costs
Staff salaries  17,325,329 13,510,723 

Overtime and allowance  2,700,291 2,780,519 

Defined contribution plan costs  2,658,387 2,072,904 

Defined benefit plan costs  (36,239) 1,565,253 

 22,647,769 19,929,399 

14.  Income tax expense
14.1  Income Tax Recognised in the Income Statement
Tax expense comprises:

Current tax expense  6,437,511 4,444,247 

Deemed dividend tax  –   1,725,612 

Dividend tax  1,682,506  –   

 8,120,017 6,169,859 

Deferred tax expense relating to the origination and reversal of temporary differences  5,700,614 (28,277,978)

 13,820,631 (22,108,119)

14.2  Reconciliation between Tax Expense and the Product of  
Accounting Profit Multiplied by the Statutory Tax rate is as follows:
Accounting profit/(loss) chargeable for income taxes  154,525,876 81,092,890 

Tax effect on chargeable profits (28%)  43,267,245 28,382,511 

Tax effect on allowable credits (36,919,492) (21,984,900)

Tax effect on deductible expenses                                                     (2,313,097) (3,352,207)

Tax effect on disallowable items                                                      5,375,039 3,791,897 

Tax effect on losses claimed                                                                   (2,937,185) (2,393,056)

Tax effect on qualifying payments                                                                  (35,000)  –   

Charged to Income Statement                                                                    6,437,511 4,444,247 

Deemed dividend taxes  –   1,725,612 

Dividend tax  1,682,506  –   

Deferred tax charge/(reversal)                                                               5,700,614 (28,277,978)

13,820,631 (22,108,119)

Effective tax rate (excluding deferred taxation) 5.25% 7.61%
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For the year ended 31st March  2011/12 2010/11
 Rs. Rs.

15.  Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share  25.09 18.40 

15.1  Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share
The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of  
basic earnings per share are as follows:

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders  140,705,245 103,201,009 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic/diluted  
   earnings per share (all measures) 5,608,355 5,608,355 

As at  31.03.2012 31.03.2011
 Rs. Rs.

16.  Investments in government securities
Treasury Bills  31,924,630 31,180,227 

REPO agreements  15,262,300  -   

 47,186,930 31,180,227 

Less: Interest to be earned  (2,021,044) (1,216,576)

 45,165,887 29,963,651 

17.  Deposits with banks
Fixed deposits  11,000,000 40,382,500 

18.  Long-term investments
Investment in shares (Note 18.1)  125,000 125,000 

Other investments (Note 18.2)  119,594 119,594 

 244,594 244,594 

31.03.2012 31.03.2011

No. of Shares Cost No. of Shares Cost
 Rs. Rs.

18.1  Investment in Shares
Lanka Synthetic Industries Ltd.  10,500 –  10,500 

Hotel Tours & Trades Ltd.  –    7,500 –  7,500 

Poltech (Ceylon) Ltd. 12,715  125,000 12,715  125,000 

Lace Industries 1,800  20,140 1,800  20,140 

 163,140  163,140 

Less: Provision for fall in value of shares (38,140) (38,140)

 125,000  125,000 

18.2  Other Investments
Credit Information Bureau 43  4,300 43  4,300 

NAMAL Unit Trust 19,608  115,294 19,608  115,294 

 119,594  119,594 
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 31.03.2012 31.03.2011
 Rs. Rs.

19.  Net investment in leases
Gross investment in leases  1,474,570,790 696,331,894 

Lease rental receivables  56,410,424 30,345,825 

 1,530,981,214 726,677,719 

Less: Unearned income  (454,941,686) (212,275,484)

 1,076,039,528 514,402,235 

Less: Interest in suspense  (2,976,162) (2,314,137)

 1,073,063,366 512,088,098 

Lease expenses recoverable  4,992,433 2,845,009 

Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts  (10,169,115) (7,817,806)

 1,067,886,685 507,115,301 

Less: Prepaid rentals  (6,458,824) (5,406,967)

Net investment in finance leases  1,061,427,861 501,708,334 

19.1  Investment in Leases

Lease Receivable within One Year                             
Total lease rental receivable within one year                  742,492,370  360,568,353 

Less - Unearned income                                                 (288,569,370)  (131,139,781)

Loan loss provision                                                (10,169,115)  (7,817,806)

Interest in suspense                                                  (2,976,162)  (2,314,137)

Total  440,777,724  219,296,629 

Lease Receivable from One to Five Years
Total lease rental receivable from one to five years         787,022,453 363,547,409 

Less - Unearned income                                                  (166,372,316) (81,135,703)

Loan loss provision                                                           –  –   

Interest in suspense                                                 –  –   

Total  620,650,137 282,411,706 

Lease Receivable after Five Years
Total lease rental receivable after five years                                 –  –   

Less - Unearned income                                                             –  –   

Loan loss provision                                                          –  –   

Interest in suspense                                                –  –   

Total  –  –   

Total lease rental receivable                                 1,529,514,823  724,115,761 

Less - Unearned income                                                             (454,941,686)  (212,275,484)

Loan loss provision                                                          (10,169,115)  (7,817,806)

Interest in suspense                                                (2,976,162)  (2,314,137)

Total  1,061,427,861  501,708,334 
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 31.03.2012 31.03.2011
 Rs. Rs.

20.  Investments in hire purchase
Hire purchase stock  20,163,254 15,310,143 

Hire purchase rental receivable  5,219,770 3,091,514 

 25,383,024 18,401,657 

Less: Interest in suspense  (1,601,257) (53,172)

 23,781,767 18,348,485 

Hire purchase expense recoverable  218,701 69,072 

Less: Provision for bad debts  (4,481,720) (117,751)

 19,518,749 18,299,805 

Less: Hire purchase rental paid in advance  (205,942) (129,533)

Net investment in hire purchase  19,312,806 18,170,273 

21.  Non-performing contracts
Aggregate amounts of non-performing loans and advances, lease receivables and hire purchase  
   receivables as at the Balance Sheet date are given below:

Lease Receivables                               
Lease stock receivables  4,035,468 1,767,807 

Lease rental receivables  10,062,875 8,142,847 

Lease expenses recoverable  1,800,730 1,309,684 

Gross NPL  15,899,072 11,220,338 

Less: Interest in suspense  (2,976,162) (2,314,137)

Net NPL  12,922,911 8,906,200 

Hire Purchase and Other Loans Receivables                       
Hire purchase stock  3,155,519 120,301 

Hire purchase rental receivable  4,342,801 158,952 

Hire purchase expenses recoverable  124,307 6,993 

Gross NPL  7,622,626 286,246 

Less: Interest in suspense  (1,601,257) (53,172)

Net NPL  6,021,370 233,074 
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 31.03.2012 31.03.2011
 Rs. Rs.

22.  Other assets
Deposits and prepayments  652,083 457,377 

Vehicle advances  4,098,600  –   

Promissory Notes (Note 22.1)  19,321,465 3,292,948 

Staff loans and advances  1,850,579 1,779,512 

Rent receivable  127,500 105,600 

VAT receivables  – 1,978,936 

Fixed deposit interest receivable  37,205 7,901,576 

VAT unabsorbed input tax as at 31.12.2010  18,820,248 18,820,248 

Debtors on hire of motor vehicle  –   30,164 

VAT unabsorbed input tax 2011/12  33,466,789 5,953,424 

LC margin  5,000,000  –   

 83,374,470 40,319,783 

22.1  Promissory Notes
Promissory Note debtors  24,754,971 3,785,576 

Less: Interest in suspense  (5,433,506) (492,628)

 19,321,465 3,292,948 

23.  Inventories
 22,050,875 21,732,142 

Generators  156,835 156,835 

Motor vehicles  28,267,087 36,174,188 

 50,474,797 58,063,165 

Less: Provision for generator stock  (156,835) (156,835)

 50,317,962 57,906,330 

24.  Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
The movement in the deferred tax is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year  83,942,736 55,664,758 

Transfer to Income Statement  (5,700,614) 28,277,978 

Balance at the end of the year  78,242,122 83,942,736 
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24.1  Deferred tax assets, liabilities and income tax related to the following:

Balance Income Balance Income
Sheet Statement Sheet Statement

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Deferred Tax Liability

Capital allowances for tax purposes              (41,069,318)  (16,858,432) (24,210,886)  (18,897,917)

Deferred Tax Assets

Bad debt provision  1,254,882  1,213,669  41,213  22,421 

Defined benefit plans                                     975,682  29,696  945,986  (24,761)

Income tax losses                                           117,080,876  9,914,453  107,166,423  47,178,236 

Deferred tax income/(expense)  (5,700,614)  28,277,978 

Net deferred tax liability  78,242,122  83,942,736 

Balance at the Additions Balance at the
Beginning of End of 

the Year the Year
Rs. Rs. Rs.

25.  Investment properties
Cost
Paddy land  32,185  – 32,185 

Land - Battaramulla  14,916,472  – 14,916,472 

Building  2,903,041  240,000 3,143,041 

Kirinda land  3,476,040  21,915 3,497,955 

 21,327,738  261,915 21,589,653 

Accumulated Depreciation
Building  763,247  87,540 850,787 

 763,247  87,540 850,787 

Carrying amount  20,564,491 20,738,866 

26.  Intangible assets
Cost
Software  850,000  – 850,000 

Computer system - OPENARC  5,150,000  – 5,150,000 

 6,000,000  – 6,000,000 
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Balance at the Charge for Balance at the
Beginning of the Year End of 

the Year the Year
Rs. Rs. Rs.

Accumulated Amortisation
Software  850,000  – 850,000 

Computer System - OPENARC  472,083  515,000 987,083 

 1,322,083  515,000 1,837,083 

Carrying amount  4,677,917 4,162,917 

The Company is currently not using the OPENARC computer system due to deficiencies in the system. The management has not assesed the 

recoverable value of such asset and in order to reflect the assets at its recoverable value.

27.  Property and equipment
 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

 Rs. Rs.

Freehold (Note 27.1)  16,016,578  12,616,710 

Leasehold (Note 27.2)  8,520,000  5,563,250 

 24,536,577  18,179,960 

27.1  Freehold

Cost 

Balance at the Additions (Disposals)/ Balance at the
Beginning of (Transfer) End of 

the Year the Year
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Freehold

Motor vehicles  13,750,887  7,856,142 (9,717,165)  11,889,864 

Furniture fittings and fixtures  4,387,483  954,089  –    5,341,572 

Office equipment  2,585,671  286,230  –    2,871,901 

Generator  1,828,139  342,323  –    2,170,462 

Computer equipment  3,794,148  1,236,030  –    5,030,178 

Telephone system  245,815  –    –    245,815 

Agricultural Equipment  946,714  –    –    946,714 

Tractor and Trailer  2,330,583  –    –    2,330,583 

 29,869,440  10,674,814 (9,717,165)  30,827,089 
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Accumulated Depreciation  

Balance at the Charge for On Disposals Balance at the
Beginning of the Year End of 

the Year the Year
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Motor vehicles  9,230,154  2,455,404 (6,333,659)  5,351,899 

Furniture fittings and fixtures  2,706,081  481,778  –    3,187,859 

Office equipment  1,249,599  214,672  –    1,464,271 

Generator  1,300,738  134,406  –    1,435,144 

Computer equipment  2,525,580  599,943  –    3,125,523 

Telephone system  240,577  5,237  –    245,815 

Agricultural Equipment  –    –    –    –   

Tractor and Trailer  –    –    –    –   

  17,252,730  3,891,440 (6,333,659)  14,810,511 

Carrying amount  12,616,710  16,016,578 

27.2  Leasehold

Cost 

Balance at the Additions (Disposals)/ Balance at the
Beginning of (Transfer) End of 

the Year the Year
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Motor vehicles  9,935,000  7,000,000 (2,625,000)  14,310,000 

 9,935,000  7,000,000 (2,625,000)  14,310,000 

Accumulated Depreciation  

Balance at the Charge for On Disposals Balance at the
Beginning of the Year End of 

the Year the Year
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Motor vehicles  4,371,750  2,993,250 (1,575,000)  5,790,000 

  4,371,750  2,993,250 (1,575,000)  5,790,000 

Carrying amount  5,563,250  8,520,000 

Company’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ title to the leased assets, which have a carrying amount of  

Rs. 8,520,000/- (Rs. 5,563,250/- as at 31st March 2011).

The cost of fully depreciated assets of the Company as at the Balance Sheet date amounted to Rs. 7,259,678.55.
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 31.03.2012 31.03.2011
 Rs. Rs.

28.  Loans against Fixed deposits
Loans against fixed deposits  1,289,142 2,472,845 

Less: Interest in suspense  (84,247) (10,973)

 1,204,895 2,461,872 

29.  Other liabilities
Accrued expenses  4,072,147 4,279,820 

Deferred income  2,712,371 

Amount due to related parties (Note 29.1)  154,668 154,668 

Lease creditor (Note 29.2)  7,475,064 5,427,741 

Other payables  107,590,182 88,664,006 

Rental received in advance  7,193,064 17,056,743 

Income tax payable (Note 29.3)  2,487,256 280,811 

 131,684,752 115,863,788 

29.1  Amounts due to Related Parties
Imperial Transport Service  27,280 27,280 

Kottawa Tours & Industries Ltd.  13,950 13,950 

Hotel Tours & Traders Ltd.  87,161 87,161 

J.P.I.N. Trust  26,277 26,277 

 154,668 154,668 

29.2  Other Payables - Lease Creditor 
Balance at the beginning of the year 7,687,651 11,040,019 

Adjustment for opening balance difference 98,319  –   

Additions during the year 8,155,208  –   

Terminations during the year (1,960,292)  –   

Payments made during the year (4,622,790) (3,303,243)

Lease other expenses (21,868) (49,125)

9,336,228 7,687,651 

Less: Interest in suspense (1,101,928) (1,504,740)

8,234,300 6,182,911 

Less: Rentals paid in advance (759,236) (755,170)

7,475,064 5,427,741 
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Short-Term Long-Term
Portion Portion

 Rs. Rs.

29.2.1  Lease Creditor
Rental outstanding  3,326,734 5,250,258 

Interest in suspense  (727,619) (374,309)

 2,599,115 4,875,949 

29.3  Income Tax Payable
Balance at the beginning of the year  280,811 (3,873,851)

Provision for the year  8,120,017 6,169,859 

ESC receivable  (4,493,256) (2,015,198)

Notional tax credit  (282,200)  –   

Withholding tax  (1,138,115)  –   

Balance at the end of the year  2,487,256 280,811 

30.  Retirement benefit obligations
Provision as at the beginning of the year  3,520,817 2,773,563 

Gratuity charge for the year  277,485 273,828 

Interest charge for the year  387,290 305,092 

Gain/(loss) arising from changes in the assumptions or due to over/under  
   provision in the previous year  (701,013) 986,334 

Payment during the year  – (818,000)

Provision as at the end of the year  3,484,578 3,520,817 

30.1  The retirement benefit obligation as at 31st March 2012 is calculated based on the formula method prescribed in Sri Lanka 

Accounting Standard 16 - (Revised 2006) ‘Employee Benefits’.

30.2  The following key assumptions were made in arriving at the above figure:

Expected salary increment rate	 0%

Rate of discount	 11%

Staff turnover rate	 5%

No. of Shares 31.03.2012 31.03.2011
Rs. Rs.

31.  Stated capital 
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares

Balance at the beginning of the year 5,608,355  56,086,280 56,086,280 

Balance at the end of the year 5,608,355  56,086,280 56,086,280 
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 31.03.2012 31.03.2011
 Rs. Rs.

32.  Other reserves
Capital reserve  17,930 17,930 

General reserve  1,029,052 1,029,052 

Statutory reserve fund (Note 32.1)  24,930,605 17,895,343 

 25,977,587 18,942,325 

32.1  Statutory Reserve Fund
Balance at the beginning of year  17,895,343 12,735,293 

Transfers during the year  7,035,262 5,160,050 

Balance at the end of year  24,930,605 17,895,343 

The Reserve Fund was created to comply with the Directions No. 1 of 2003 issued by the Central Bank under Finance Companies Act No. 78 

of 1988. During the year 2011/12 the Company transferred Rs. 7,035,262/- a sum equal to 5% of the net profits for the year ended 31st  

March 2012 to Reserve Fund.

 31.03.2012 31.03.2011
 Rs. Rs.

33.  Retained earnings 
Balance at the beginning of year  293,858,176 195,817,217 

Profit for the year  140,705,245 103,201,009 

Transfer to reserve fund  (7,035,262) (5,160,050)

Dividends paid  (15,142,559)  –   

Balance at the end of year  412,385,600 293,858,176 

34.  Related party transactions 
	The Company carries out transactions in the ordinary course of business with parties who are defined as related parties in Sri Lanka 

Accounting Standard 30.

34.1  Transactions with Directors and Other Key Managerial Persons

	Related parties include key managerial defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling 

the activities of the Company and its related companies. Such key managerial persons include the Board of Directors of the Company, 

key employees who are holding directorship in other related companies of the Company and other key executives who meet the criteria 

described above.

(i)	  Mr. J.P.I.N. Dayawansa, Mrs. W.A.S. Dayawansa, Mr. J.P.I.S. Dayawansa, Mr. K.D.L. Nanayakkara and Mr. L.C.W. Edirisooriya were the 

Directors of the Company during the period.
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(ii)  Compensation of Key Management Personnel 							     

	The remuneration of Directors and other members of key management during the year was as follows:	

2011/12 2010/11
 Rs. Rs.

Short-term benefits  900,000 120,000 

35.  Capital commitments
	There were no material capital commitments outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date.

36.  Contingent liabilities
	There were no material contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date.

37.  Events after the balance sheet date							     
	There were no significant events after the Balance Sheet date that require adjustments to or disclosure in the Balance Sheet date.

38.  Segmental information
2012 2011

Rs. % Rs. %

38.1  Assets
Finance leases 1,061,427,861 89 501,708,334 51

Hire purchase 19,312,806 2 18,170,273 3

Investment in Government Securities and fixed deposits 56,165,887 5 70,346,151 39

Inventory 28,267,087 2 36,174,188 3

Investment property 20,738,866 2 20,564,491 4

Total  1,185,912,506 100  646,963,437 100

38.2  Gross Income On 
Finance leasing  263,642,741 86  129,984,373 67

Hire purchase  6,270,288 2  7,364,907 2

Investment in Government Securities and fixed deposits  10,603,483 3  15,542,152 14

Sale of motor vehicles  24,587,631 8  20,384,788 15

Other income  2,340,268 1  2,050,198 2

Total  307,444,411 100  175,326,417 100
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39.  Financial Ratios
Key Ratios % 31st March 2008 31st March 2009 31st March 2010 31st March 2011 31st March 2012

AMF Industry AMF Industry AMF Industry AMF Industry AMF Industry
% % % % % % % % % %

Profitability

Net interest margin 16.26 6.68 16.62 5.85 12.21 6.07 13.03 7.91 17.76 6.09

Non-interest income margin 2.81 3.36 5.47 2.60 4.71 1.74 4.32 2.76 2.98 2.96

Cost to income 47.61 66.45 43.74 78.93 47.24 83.35 43.16 66.29 30.69 52.25

Return on assets 9.24 2.82 11.24 0.85 7.53 0.07 11.16 2.82 13.73 4.37

Return on equity 34.44 17.81 29.87 5.57 18.14 0.55 25.56 24.40 35.80 33.34

Asset Quality

Gross NPL ratio 2.54 5.19 3.85 6.46 7.88 7.90 1.71 7.60 1.69 5.91

Net NPL ratio 1.06 2.85 1.04 4.40 2.21 4.99 0.23 4.74 0.39 3.83

Specific loan loss provisions  
 for current year 1.20 78.00 1.90 1.34 2.69 1.86 0.00 0.29 0.00 0.17

Gross NPL coverage 58.90 63.41 73.76 55.31 73.56 71.23 86.83 66.66 77.34 51.16

Loan loss reserve coverage 1.50 3.29 2.84 3.57 5.80 5.63 1.48 5.07 1.30 3.02

General loan loss reserve coverage 0.00 0.91 0.00 1.45 0.00 2.65 0.00 2.12 0.00 0.88

Liquidity and funding

Liquid asset ratio 30.51 19.78 34.98 15.49 78.76 16.49 24.92 14.84 14.57 14.85

Statutory liquid asset ratio 30.43 19.99 34.92 15.84 78.71 15.62 25.97 13.05 14.49 14.08

Customer deposits to total  
   interest-bearing funds 100.00 75.74 100.00 78.41 100.00 85.17 95.83 81.08 71.61 69.50

Loans to deposits ratio 106.00 109.26 130.90 105.02 100.03 90.28 176.29 103.51 196.79 141.31

Loans to stable funds ratio 69.67 76.63 73.68 75.96 52.63 72.33 79.56 78.45 140.93 87.20

Capital Adequacy

Shareholders’ funds to  
   total assets 34.06 15.73 40.39 14.69 42.36 11.78 44.67 11.36 34.70 14.24

Tier I risk weighted  
   capital adequacy ratio 43.42 12.98 51.28 12.63 58.60 – 49.92 – 37.81 –

Overall risk weighted  
   capital adequacy ratio 43.42 15.33 51.28 14.61 58.60 – 49.92 – 37.81 –

Internal rate of capital generation 41.81 13.84 43.02 2.64 27.43 -4.09 32.53 11.55 32.60 25.87
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Ratio Definition

Net Interest Margin Net Interest Income/Total Average Assets

Non-Interest Income Margin Non-Interest Income/Total Average Assets

Cost to Income Personnel and Other Non-Interest Expenses/Net Interest Income and Non-Interest Income

Return on Assets Pre-Tax Profits/Total Average Assets

Return on Equity Pre-Tax Profits/Average Shareholders’ Funds

Gross NPL Ratio Total Non-Performing Loans – Interest-in-Suspense)/(Gross Loans – Interest-in-Suspense)

Net NPL Ratio Total Non-Performing Loans – Specific Loan Loss Reserves – Interest-in-Suspense)/ 
   (Gross Loans – Specific Loan Loss Reserves – Interest-in-Suspense)

Specific Loan Loss Provisions  
 for Current Year

Specific Loan Loss Provisions (P&L)/Average Gross Loans

Gross NPL Coverage General and Specific Loan Loss Reserves(B/S)/(Total Non-Performing Loans-Interest-in-Suspense)

Loan Loss Reserve Coverage General and Specific Loan Loss Reserves(B/S)/(Gross Loans-Interest-in-Suspense)

General Loan Loss Reserve Coverage General Loan Loss Reserves/(Gross Loans-Interest-in-Suspense-Specific Loan Loss Reserves)

Liquid Asset Ratio Liquid Assets/Customer Deposits and Short-Term Funds

Statutory Liquid Asset Ratio Statutory Liquid Assets/Customer Deposits

Loans to Deposits Net Loans/Customer Deposits

Loans to Stable Funds Net Loans/(Shareholders’ Funds + Total Interest-Bearing Funds + General Loan Loss Reserves- 
   Interbank Funding-Fixed Assets-Investment in Subsidiaries/Associates)

General loss does not apply to Finance companies but only for banks

Short-Term Funds Interbank Deposits + Bills and Acceptances + Securities Sold Under Repos

Liquid Assets Cash and Short-Term Funds + Securities Purchased Under Repos + Deposits & Placements with 
   Financial Institutions + Quoted Securities

Statutory Liquid Assets Cash and Short-Term Funds + Securities Purchased Under Repos + Deposits & Placements with 
   Financial Institutions+ Government Securities and Treasury Bills

Total Interest-Bearing Funding Customer Deposits + Interbank + Bills and Acceptances + Securities Sold Under Repos +  
   Borrowing + Supplementary Capital

Internal Rate of Capital Generation Profit After Tax + Extraordinary Income-Dividend + General Loan Loss Provision/Average 
   Shareholders’ Funds
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40.  Maturity analysis
 Up to 3 months  3 to 12 months  1 to 3 years  3 to 5 years  More than 5 years  Total 

 31.03.2012  31.03.2011  31.03.2012  31.03.2011  31.03.2012  31.03.2011  31.03.2012  31.03.2011  31.03.2012  31.03.2011  31.03.2012  31.03.2011 
 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Interest Earning Assets Interest Earning Assets

Investments in Government securities  7,364,602  7,364,602 37,801,285  22,599,050  –  –  –  –  –  –  45,165,887  29,963,652 Investments in Government securities

Investments in fixed deposits  11,000,000  10,382,500  –  30,000,000  –  –  –  –  –  –  11,000,000  40,382,500 Investments in fixed deposits

Investments in hire purchase  5,100,000  4,682,037  5,325,000  4,424,149  8,887,806  9,064,087  –  –  –  –  19,312,806  18,170,273 Investments in hire purchase

Investments in leases  100,098,234  69,289,304  344,239,287  150,007,324 617,090,340  280,405,923  –  2,005,783  –  –  1,061,427,861  501,708,334 Investments in leases

Investment on Loans against FD  –  –  1,204,895  2,461,872  –  –  –  –  –  –  1,204,895  2,461,872 Investment on Loans against FD

Investment in pronotes and other loans  –  –  19,792,604  3,292,948  –  –  –  –  –  –  19,792,604  3,292,948 Investment in pronotes and other loans

 123,562,836  91,718,443  408,363,071  212,785,342  625,978,146  289,470,010  –  2,005,783  –  –  1,157,904,053  595,979,578 

Non-Interest Earning Assets Non-Interest Earning Assets

Cash in hand and at banks  24,925,261  7,345,060  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  24,925,261  7,345,060 Cash in hand and at banks

Inventories  28,267,087  36,174,188  22,050,875  21,732,142  –  –  –  –  –  –  50,317,962  57,906,330 Inventories

Investments in shares  –  –  –  –  244,594  244,594  –  –  –  –  244,594  244,594 Investments in shares

Deferred tax assets  –  –  –  –  –  –  78,242,122  83,942,736  –  –  78,242,122  83,942,736 Deferred tax assets

Other assets  9,263,305  8,054,219  2,502,662  23,474,031  52,287,037  9,024,002  –  –  –  –  64,053,005  40,552,252 Other assets

Property and equipment  –  –  –  –  –  –  24,536,577  18,179,960  –  –  24,536,577  18,179,960 Property and equipment

Intangible assets  –  –  –  –  –  –  4,162,917  4,677,917  –  –  4,162,917  4,677,917 Intangible assets

Investment property  –  –  –  –  –  –  20,738,866  20,564,491  –  –  20,738,866  20,564,491 Investment property

 62,455,654  51,573,467  24,553,537  45,206,173  52,531,631  9,268,596  127,680,481  127,365,103  –  –  267,221,303  233,413,339 

Total assets  186,018,489  143,291,910  432,916,608  257,991,515  678,509,777  298,738,606  127,680,481  129,370,886  –  –  1,425,125,355  829,392,917 Total assets

Percentage 13.1% 17.3% 30.4% 31.1% 47.6% 36.0% 9.0% 15.6% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% Percentage

 Up to 3 months  3 to 12 months  1 to 3 years  3 to 5 years  More than 5 years  Total 
 31.03.2012  31.03.2011  31.03.2012  31.03.2011  31.03.2012  31.03.2011  31.03.2012  31.03.2011  31.03.2012  31.03.2011  31.03.2012  31.03.2011 

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Interest-Bearing Liabilities Interest-Bearing Liabilities

Public deposits  151,691,223  45,887,134  179,837,059  112,633,861  202,977,657  99,529,962  25,102,963  41,130,239  –  –  559,608,902  299,181,196 Public deposits

Bank overdraft  –  –  57,625,994  13,029,577  –  –  –  –  –  –  57,625,994  13,029,577 Bank overdraft

Interest-bearing public deposits  3,814,356  2,359,738  4,522,098  5,792,177  5,103,980  5,118,311  631,227  2,115,115  –  –  14,071,662  15,385,341 Interest-bearing public deposits

Securitisation loan  20,300,000  53,700,000  90,200,000  164,200,000 Securitisation loan

 175,805,579  48,246,872  295,685,150  131,455,615  298,281,638  104,648,273  25,734,191  43,245,354  –  –  795,506,557  327,596,114 

Non-Interest-Bearing Liabilities Non-Interest-Bearing Liabilities

Other liabilities  109,311,153  101,095,688  23,678,500  19,010,358  377,605  5,757,741  –  –  –  –  133,367,258  125,863,787 Other liabilities

Retirement benefit obligations  –  –  –  –  –  –  3,484,578  3,520,817  –  –  3,484,578  3,520,817 Retirement benefit obligations

 109,311,153  101,095,688  23,678,500  19,010,358  377,605  5,757,741  3,484,578  3,520,817  –  –  136,851,836  129,384,604 

Total liabilities  285,116,732  149,342,560  319,363,651  150,465,973  298,659,243  110,406,015  29,218,769  46,766,171  –  –  932,358,394  456,980,718 Total liabilities

Percentage 30.6% 32.7% 34.3% 32.9% 32.0% 24.2% 3.1% 10.2% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% Percentage
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40.  Maturity analysis
 Up to 3 months  3 to 12 months  1 to 3 years  3 to 5 years  More than 5 years  Total 

 31.03.2012  31.03.2011  31.03.2012  31.03.2011  31.03.2012  31.03.2011  31.03.2012  31.03.2011  31.03.2012  31.03.2011  31.03.2012  31.03.2011 
 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Interest Earning Assets Interest Earning Assets

Investments in Government securities  7,364,602  7,364,602 37,801,285  22,599,050  –  –  –  –  –  –  45,165,887  29,963,652 Investments in Government securities

Investments in fixed deposits  11,000,000  10,382,500  –  30,000,000  –  –  –  –  –  –  11,000,000  40,382,500 Investments in fixed deposits

Investments in hire purchase  5,100,000  4,682,037  5,325,000  4,424,149  8,887,806  9,064,087  –  –  –  –  19,312,806  18,170,273 Investments in hire purchase

Investments in leases  100,098,234  69,289,304  344,239,287  150,007,324 617,090,340  280,405,923  –  2,005,783  –  –  1,061,427,861  501,708,334 Investments in leases

Investment on Loans against FD  –  –  1,204,895  2,461,872  –  –  –  –  –  –  1,204,895  2,461,872 Investment on Loans against FD

Investment in pronotes and other loans  –  –  19,792,604  3,292,948  –  –  –  –  –  –  19,792,604  3,292,948 Investment in pronotes and other loans

 123,562,836  91,718,443  408,363,071  212,785,342  625,978,146  289,470,010  –  2,005,783  –  –  1,157,904,053  595,979,578 

Non-Interest Earning Assets Non-Interest Earning Assets

Cash in hand and at banks  24,925,261  7,345,060  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  24,925,261  7,345,060 Cash in hand and at banks

Inventories  28,267,087  36,174,188  22,050,875  21,732,142  –  –  –  –  –  –  50,317,962  57,906,330 Inventories

Investments in shares  –  –  –  –  244,594  244,594  –  –  –  –  244,594  244,594 Investments in shares

Deferred tax assets  –  –  –  –  –  –  78,242,122  83,942,736  –  –  78,242,122  83,942,736 Deferred tax assets

Other assets  9,263,305  8,054,219  2,502,662  23,474,031  52,287,037  9,024,002  –  –  –  –  64,053,005  40,552,252 Other assets

Property and equipment  –  –  –  –  –  –  24,536,577  18,179,960  –  –  24,536,577  18,179,960 Property and equipment

Intangible assets  –  –  –  –  –  –  4,162,917  4,677,917  –  –  4,162,917  4,677,917 Intangible assets

Investment property  –  –  –  –  –  –  20,738,866  20,564,491  –  –  20,738,866  20,564,491 Investment property

 62,455,654  51,573,467  24,553,537  45,206,173  52,531,631  9,268,596  127,680,481  127,365,103  –  –  267,221,303  233,413,339 

Total assets  186,018,489  143,291,910  432,916,608  257,991,515  678,509,777  298,738,606  127,680,481  129,370,886  –  –  1,425,125,355  829,392,917 Total assets

Percentage 13.1% 17.3% 30.4% 31.1% 47.6% 36.0% 9.0% 15.6% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% Percentage

 Up to 3 months  3 to 12 months  1 to 3 years  3 to 5 years  More than 5 years  Total 
 31.03.2012  31.03.2011  31.03.2012  31.03.2011  31.03.2012  31.03.2011  31.03.2012  31.03.2011  31.03.2012  31.03.2011  31.03.2012  31.03.2011 

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Interest-Bearing Liabilities Interest-Bearing Liabilities

Public deposits  151,691,223  45,887,134  179,837,059  112,633,861  202,977,657  99,529,962  25,102,963  41,130,239  –  –  559,608,902  299,181,196 Public deposits

Bank overdraft  –  –  57,625,994  13,029,577  –  –  –  –  –  –  57,625,994  13,029,577 Bank overdraft

Interest-bearing public deposits  3,814,356  2,359,738  4,522,098  5,792,177  5,103,980  5,118,311  631,227  2,115,115  –  –  14,071,662  15,385,341 Interest-bearing public deposits

Securitisation loan  20,300,000  53,700,000  90,200,000  164,200,000 Securitisation loan

 175,805,579  48,246,872  295,685,150  131,455,615  298,281,638  104,648,273  25,734,191  43,245,354  –  –  795,506,557  327,596,114 

Non-Interest-Bearing Liabilities Non-Interest-Bearing Liabilities

Other liabilities  109,311,153  101,095,688  23,678,500  19,010,358  377,605  5,757,741  –  –  –  –  133,367,258  125,863,787 Other liabilities

Retirement benefit obligations  –  –  –  –  –  –  3,484,578  3,520,817  –  –  3,484,578  3,520,817 Retirement benefit obligations

 109,311,153  101,095,688  23,678,500  19,010,358  377,605  5,757,741  3,484,578  3,520,817  –  –  136,851,836  129,384,604 

Total liabilities  285,116,732  149,342,560  319,363,651  150,465,973  298,659,243  110,406,015  29,218,769  46,766,171  –  –  932,358,394  456,980,718 Total liabilities

Percentage 30.6% 32.7% 34.3% 32.9% 32.0% 24.2% 3.1% 10.2% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% Percentage
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 31.03.2008  31.03.2009  31.03.2010  31.03.2011  31.03.2012 

 Rs. ‘000  Rs. ‘000  Rs. ‘000  Rs. ‘000  Rs. ‘000 

Balance Sheet

Cash and cash equivalents  7,334  8,169  25,026  7,345  24,925 

Investments in Government Securities  44,150  55,575  29,079  29,964  45,166 

Deposits with banks  15,500  16,000  161,191  40,383  11,000 

Long-term investments  283  245  245  245  245 

Investment fund account – – –  –    471 

Investment in leases  221,539  292,035  246,907  501,708  1,061,428 

Investment in hire purchase  4,359  3,762  13,999  18,170  19,313 

Other assets  25,922  14,792  32,004  40,320  83,374 

Inventories  16,062  29,997  14,914  36,174  28,267 

Stock of real estate – –  5,559  21,732  22,051 

Deferred tax assets  6,401  29,260  55,665  83,943  78,242 

Investment properties  17,544  17,372  17,230  20,564  20,739 

Intangible assets  391  221  51  4,678  4,163 

Property and equipment  11,042  18,809  19,282  18,180  24,537 

Loan against Fixed deposits – –  6,105  2,462  1,205 

Total Assets  370,527  486,236  627,257  825,867  1,425,125 

Bank overdraft  0.11  0.11  0.11  13,030  57,626 

Public deposits  220,112  228,350  273,532  299,181  559,609 

Securitisation loan  –    –    –    –    164,200 

Interest payable on public deposits  7,399  14,348  14,610  15,385  14,072 

Other liabilities  13,344  45,560  70,655  115,864  131,685 

Retirement benefit obligations  3,486  1,605  2,774  3,521  3,485 

Pledge loan from CFC – – –  10,000  –   

Total Liabilities  244,341  289,864  361,571  456,981  930,676 

Shareholders’ Fund    

Stated capital  52,080  52,080  56,086  56,086  56,086 

Other reserves  7,144  10,614  13,782  18,942  25,978 

Retained earnings  66,962  133,679  195,817  293,858  412,386 

 126,186  196,373  265,686  368,887  494,449 

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Funds  370,527  486,236  627,257  825,867  1,425,125 

Income Statement

Gross income  98,064  151,276  146,859  184,350  313,733 

Interst income  88,821  127,711  120,340  152,499  280,143 

Interst expense  36,344  56,509  52,339  48,984  80,213 

Net interest income  52,477  71,202  68,001  103,515  199,930 

Other Operating Income  9,242  23,565  26,518  31,851  33,590 

Operating expenditure  31,892  46,596  52,610  54,273  78,994 

Profit before income tax  29,828  48,171  41,910  81,093  154,526 

Dividends  –    –    –    –    16,825 

Net Profit after tax  36,204  69,388  63,373  103,201  140,705 
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDERS ACCORDING TO THE NUMBER OF SHARES AS AT 31st MARch 2012
RESIDENT NON-RESIDENT

Shareholdings
No. of 

Shareholders
No. of 
Shares

Percentage 
(%)

No. of 
Shareholders

No. of 
Shares

Percentage 
(%)

No. of 
Shareholders

No. of 
Shares

Percentage 
(%)

	 1	 -	 1,000 Shares 155 26,169 0.47 1 300 0.01 156 26,469 0.48

	 1,001	 -	 10,000 Shares 4 20,057 0.36 – – 0.00 4 20,057 0.36

	10,001	 -	 100,000 Shares 9 703,618 12.55 – – 0.00 9 703,618 12.55

	100,001	 -	1,000,000 Shares 2 753,998 13.44 – – 0.00 2 753,998 13.44

	Over 1,000,000 Shares 2 4,104,213 73.18 – – 0.00 2 4,104,213 73.18

172 5,608,055 99.99 1 300 0.01 173 5,608,355 100.00

Categories of Shareholders No. of Shareholders No. of Shares

Individual 163 3,126,412 

Institutional 10 2,481,943 

Total 173 5,608,355

Twenty Major Shareholders as at 31st March 2012	
Name No. of Shares % 

1. Imperial Import & Export Co. (Pvt) Ltd. 2,422,308 43.19

2. Mr. John Paulu Irugalbandarage Nalatha Dayawansa 2,204,213 39.3

3. Mrs. Geewandarage Jinawathie Perera 231,690 4.13

4. Mrs. Ayanthi Shamalka Dayawansa 98,784 1.76

5. Mr. John Paulu Irugalbandarage Shanil Dayawansa 92,386 1.65

6. Mr. John Paulu Irugalbandarage Nadishka Dayawansa 92,386 1.65

7. Mrs. Ayoma Shyamali Perera 90,000 1.60

8. Miss. Akuranawattage Shiyonika Perera 90,000 1.60

9. Mr. Akuranawattage Prajith Perera 90,000 1.60

10. Mr. John Paulu Irugalbandarage Nelaka Dayawansa 81,536 1.45

11. Kottawa Industries & Tours Ltd. 51,560 0.92

12. Mrs. Podinona Perera 16,966 0.30

13. Mr. John Paulu Irugalbandarage Vajira Priyantha 7,762 0.14

14. Mr. John Paulu Irugalbandarage Pushparani 6,213 0.11

15. Imperial Tours 5,000 0.09

16. Imperial Motor Finance Co. Ltd. 1,082 0.02

17. Miss. Manjula Nilankini Nelson Wickramasinhge 1,000 0.02

18. Mr. Jayamal Bilindu Gunaratne 1,000 0.02

19. Mr. Hewadewage Nimal Jayasiri Gunaratne 1,000 0.02

20. Majestic Investment (Pvt) Ltd. 1,000 0.02

Sub Total 5,585,886 99.59

Other Shareholders 22,469 0.41

Total 5,608,355 100.00
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MARKET VALUE PER SHARE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March 2012 31st March 2011 

Rs. Rs. 

Highest 821 –

Lowest 200 –

Closing 410 –

Directors’ Shareholdings as at 31st March 2012
Name No. of Shares

Dr. L. R. Karunaratne -

Mr. J. P. I. N. Dayawansa 2,204,213

Mrs. A. S. Dayawansa 98,784

Mr. J. P. I. S. Dayawansa 92,386

Mr. K. D. L. Nanayakkara 500

Mr. L. Edirisooriya -

Public Holding
Public Holding as a % of Issued Share Capital 14.06%
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ASSOCIATED MOTOR FINANCE COMPANY PLC - PB 733 PQ
(The former name was Associated Motor Finance Company Limited)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Associated 

Motor Finance Company PLC, will be held at No. 89, Hyde Park Corner, Colombo 02 on  

28th September 2012 at 3.00 P.M. for the following purposes: 

AGENDA 

1.	 To consider and receive the Annual Report of the Board and the Audited Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31st March 2012, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2.	 To authorise the Directors to determine contributions to charities.

3.	 To authorise the Directors to determine the remuneration of the Auditors, Messrs SJMS 

Associates, Chartered Accountants who shall be deemed to have been reappointed as Auditors 

in terms of Section 158 of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

4.	 To consider any other business of which due notice has been given.

By Order of the Board of Directors of 

ASSOCIATED MOTOR FINANCE COMPANY PLC 

Chart Business Systems (Pvt) Ltd.
Secretaries

No. 141/3, Vauxhall Street 

Colombo 02							     

27th August 2012

Note:
	 A shareholder is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf, and a proxy 

need not to be a shareholder of the Company. A Form of Proxy is attached for this purpose. 

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be deposited at S.S.P. Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd. at 

No. 546, Galle Road, Colombo 03 not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time fixed for 

the meeting. 

	 Shareholders are requested to indicate any changes in their address.

Notice of
Annual General Meeting ASSOCIATED MOTOR FINANCE COMPANY PLC
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Form of
Proxy

ASSOCIATED MOTOR FINANCE COMPANY PLC - PB 733 PQ

I/We …………………………………………….....................……………………………………............................................

.......................................................................................................................................................................

...........................................................................….…… (NIC No. .................….............................……………)

of …………………........................……………………………………………………………………………………………………….

being a *shareholder/shareholders of Associated Motor Finance Company PLC hereby appoint

(i) .......................……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..…..

	 of………………………………………...………………………………………………….………………….……..or failing him

(ii) Mr. L.R. Karunaratne, Chairman of the Board of Associated Motor Finance Company PLC, or 

failing him any one of the other Directors of the Company as *my/our Proxy to attend and 

vote as indicated hereunder for *me/us and on *my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting 

of the Company to be held on 28th September 2012 and at every poll which may be taken in 

consequence of the aforesaid meeting and at any adjournment thereof.

	

	 For	 Against

1.	 To consider and receive the Annual Report of the Board/and the Audited 

Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2012, together with 

the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2.	 To authorise the Directors to determine contributions to charities. 

3.	 To authorise the Directors to determine the remuneration of the Auditors, 

Messrs SJMS Associates, Chartered Accountants who shall be deemed to 

have been reappointed as Auditors in terms of Section 158 of the 

Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

(**) The proxy may vote as he thinks fit on any other resolution brought before the Meeting.

	 ….......……………………………

	 Signature of Shareholder

…………………….…. 2012

Note: 

(a)	* Please delete the inappropriate words.

(b)	Instructions as to completion of proxy form are noted on the reverse hereof.



INSTRUCTIONS AS TO COMPLETION
	 Kindly perfect the Form of Proxy, after filling in legibly your full name and address by 

deleting one or other of the alternative words indicated by an asterisk in the body of 

the form overleaf in order to indicate clearly your voting instructions, and by signing in 

the space provided and filling in the date of signature.

	 A person may be appointed a proxy though he/she is not a shareholder of the Company.

	 The completed form of proxy should be deposited at S.S.P. Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd., 

No. 546, Galle Road, Colombo 03, not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for  

the Meeting.

	 If the Form of Proxy is signed by an attorney, the relative power of attorney would 

accompany the Form of Proxy for registration if such power has not already been 

registered with the Company. 

	 If the appointer is a corporation, the Form of Proxy must be under its common seal or 

under the hand of some duly authorised person of such corporation.

	 If there is any doubt as to which way the Proxy should vote by reason of the way in 

which instructions have been indicated in a completed proxy, no vote will be recorded 

by the Proxy.

Form of
Proxy

ASSOCIATED MOTOR FINANCE COMPANY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12
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Corporate 
Information 

Name of the Company
Associated Motor Finance Company PLC

		

Legal Form
A Public Limited Company.

Re-registered under the Companies Act No. 07 

of 2007 and registered under Finance Companies 

Act No. 78 of 1988.

		

Date of Incorporation
25th July 1962	

	

Company Number
PB 733 PQ

	

Registered Office
No. 89, Hyde Park Corner, Colombo 02

	

Principal Line of Business	
Acceptance of Public Deposits

Leasing and Hire Purchase

Loans for Small and Medium Entrepreneurs 

Real Estate Trading

Promissory Loans

Mortgage Loans

Import and Trading of Private and Commercial 

Vehicles

		

Stock Exchange Listing
Ordinary Shares of the Company are listed on the 

Colombo Stock Exchange from 23rd May 2011 

onwards. 

Board of Directors	
Dr. L.R. Karunaratne

Mr. J.P.I.N. Dayawansa

Mrs. A.S. Dayawansa

Mr. J.P.I.S. Dayawansa

Mr. K.D.L. Nanayakkara

Mr. L.C.W. Edirisooriya

Senior Management	
Mr. T.M.A. Sallay

Mr. M.K.P.J.A. Perera

Mr. K.I. Grero

Mr. K.I.S. Grero

Mr. G.S.S. Gunasekara

Mr. P. A. Nilan Perera

Mr. Vajira Panditharatne		

Secretaries	
Chart Business Systems (Pvt) Ltd.

141/3, Vauxhall Street, Colombo 02	

	

Auditors
SJMS Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

No. 2, Castle Lane,

Colombo 04

Bankers to the Company 
People’ s Bank 

Hyde Park Corner Branch 

No. 50, Sarathi Building 

Hyde Park Corner 

Colombo 02 

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

No. 82, W.A. De Ramanayake Mawatha 

Colombo 02

Bank of Ceylon 

Union Place Branch

No. 278, Access Tower 

Union Place, Colombo 2

Bank of Ceylon 

Metropolitan Branch,

York Street, Colombo 01

Nations Trust Bank PLC 

P.O. Box 835, 

No. 242, Union Place 

Colombo 2

Legal Advisor 			    	
Gunawardena & Ranasinghe Associates

Attorneys-At-Law & Notaries Public

No. 1056, Maradana Road, 

Colombo 08

Tax Advisors
SJMS Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

No. 2, Castle Lane, Colombo 04	
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